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BOARD'S REPORT

To the Members
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 4th Annual Report of the Company, together with the audited 

st March, 2019. 

Financial Results
` in Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31st March, 2019
IND AS

Year ended 31st March, 2018
IND AS

Revenue from Operations 14,022.70 7,785.36
Less: Total Expenditure 10,491.28 6,418.21

3,531.42 2,243.72
2,500.52 1,565.89

Total comprehensive income 2,498.86 15,66.96
Surplus / Shortfall brought forward - -
Amount available for appropriation 2,500.52 1,565.89
Appropriations have been made as under:
Transfers to:
- Statutory Reserve 500.10 313.18

Operating and Financial Performance
During the year under review, your Company 
registered a total disbursement of ` 809 crores.

` 25 crores and net 
worth of the Company is ` 192.30 crores as at 31st 
March, 2019. We are pleased to inform that the 
Assets under management have grown to ` 1307 
crores from ` 764 crores.

Capital Structure 

Authorised Capital

the authorised capital of the Company. As at 31st 
March, 2019, the authorised Capital of the 
Company was ` 200 crores.

Paid-up Capital

terms of letter of offer issued to the existing 
shareholders, your Company had allotted 
30,000,000 equity shares at a face value of `10 
per share aggregating to `30 crores on 31st 
December, 2018. Post allotment the paid up 
capital of the Company was ` 150 Crores as on 
31st March, 2019. 

Bank Borrowings

availed loans aggregating to ` 626 crore and 
received sanctions for term loans and cash credit 
facilities from banks amounting to ` 50 crores as 
on 31st March, 2019.

Dividend
In order to augment capital required for supporting 
growth of your Company, through retention of 
internal accruals, your Board of Directors have not 
recommended any dividend for the year.

Transfer to Reserves
` 5 crores 

was transferred to the Statutory Reserve created 
under Section 29C of the National Housing Bank 
Act, 1987.

Deposits
During the year under review, your Company has 
not accepted any public deposits within the 
meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules made thereunder including NHB Directions 
2010, as the Company is registered as Housing 
Finance Institution without accepting public 
deposits. 
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Credit Rating

The following table sets forth certain information 
with respect to credit ratings of Hinduja Housing 
Finance Limited as of 31st March, 2019;

Facility Rating
Long-term Bank Facilities
Short-term Bank Facilities CARE A1+
Commercial papers CARE A1+ / 

CRISIL A1+
Non-convertible 
Debentures

CRISIL AA- 

Capital Adequacy

As required under Housing Finance Companies 

Company is presently required to maintain a 
minimum capital adequacy of 12% on a standalone 

Company as on 31st March, 2019, was 19.87% 

regulatory requirement of 12%.

In addition, the NHB Directions, 2010 also requires 
that your Company transfers minimum 20% of its 

Company has duly complied with.

Compliance with Directions/Guidelines of 
National Housing Bank (NHB) and other 
statutes

The Company has complied with the provisions of 

2010, as prescribed by NHB and has been in 

and Guidelines issued by National Housing Bank 

the Audit Committee / Board of Directors at regular 
intervals to update the Committee/ Board members 
on the compliance of the same.

Corporate Governance 

In accordance with the Housing Finance 

Housing Bank) Directions, 2016, issued by the 

HFC.CG-DIR.1/MD&CEO/2016 dated 9th 
February, 2017, your Company has framed an 
internal Corporate Governance guidelines, in 
order to enable adoption of best practices and 
great transparency in the business operations. A 
report on corporate governance is attached and 

The said Report covers in detail the Corporate 
Governance Philosophy of the Company, Board 
Diversity, Directors appointment and remuneration, 
declaration by Independent Directors, Board 
evaluation, familiarisation programme, vigil 
mechanism etc.

Code of Conduct

Your Company has a duly approved Code of 
Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior 

in place in terms of the internal Corporate 
Governance guidelines. The subject Code 

commitment, duties and responsibilities that 
serves as a basis for taking ethical decision-
making in the conduct of day to day professional 
work. The Code requires the Directors and 
employees to act honestly, ethically and with 
integrity and in a professional and respectful 
manner. The Board of Directors and Senior 
management personnel have provided their 

Awards and Accolades

The year proved to be a milestone year in terms of 
recognition. In an industry space that is increasingly 
competitive with aspirational customers, at Hinduja 
Housing our operations and processes have 
enabled us to stand out and be recognized as 

won by the Company during the Financial Year 
2018-19, at various award forums:
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Best 
Housing Finance Company of the year by 

Outstanding Company in Housing Finance 

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel 

The Board of Directors made the following 
appointments/ re-appointments based on the 
recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee: 

Retirement by rotation

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 

any, of the Act and the Articles of Association of 

retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for 
re-appointment. The particulars relating to  
Mr. S Nagarajan, Director are provided in the 
Report on Corporate Governance. Your Directors 
recommend the re-appointment of Mr. S 
Nagarajan, as a Director. The agenda relating to 
re-appointment of Mr. S Nagarajan, Director forms 
part of the notice convening the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting.

Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have given declarations 

they meet the criteria of independence as provided 

Key Management Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the 
Act read with the Rules made thereunder, the 
whole-time key managerial personnel of the 
Company are Mr. Sachin Pillai, Managing Director, 
Ms. Roopa Sampath Kumar, Chief Financial 

Secretary.

Statutory Auditors

As per the provisions of Sections 139 and 141 and 
all other applicable provisions of the Companies 

Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022), 
Chartered accountants were appointed as 

the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting 

during their term, at such remuneration and out-of-
pocket expenses, as may be decided by the Board 
of Directors of the Company.

The requirement of placing the matter relating to 

every annual general meeting has been dispensed 

issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt. of 

Our Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of 

view of expiry of BSR’s tenure as statutory auditors 
of HLF, the Audit Committee and the Board of 
Directors of HLF have recommended the 
appointment of M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, 

Registration No.008072S) as their Statutory 
Auditors, subject to the approval of the 
shareholders.

In view of above and to align the auditors with the 
auditors proposed to be appointed by HLF, the 
Audit Committee and Board of our Company is 
considering appointment of Deloitte as our 
statutory auditors. The appointment, if made, 

conclusion of the Fourth AGM till the conclusion of 
Ninth AGM to be held in the year 2024 and within 
the limits mentioned under the provisions of 
Section 141 of the Act, 2013 and the Companies 
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The Auditors’ Report for FY 2018-19 issued by 

reservation or adverse remarks. The Auditors’ 

this Annual Report.

Secretarial Audit

As required under section 204 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules thereof, the Board appointed 
M/s. G Ramachandran & Associates, Company 
Secretaries, to undertake the secretarial audit of 

2013, your Directors draw your attention to the 
remark in the secretarial audit report regarding a 
penalty of Rs. 15,000 and GST thereon imposed 

Sup./A-2718/2019 dated 25th March, 2019 for non-
compliance of credit concentration norms as 

Companies Directions, 2010. The said penalty 

31st March, 2019. The secretarial audit report is 
attached and forms part of this annual report and 

Compliance under Companies Act, 2013

Your Company has complied with the requirements 
of the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2018-19. In terms of Section 134 of the Act read 

compliance requirements and the detail of 
compliances under Companies Act, 2013 are 
enumerated below:

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

To the best of our knowledge and belief and on the 
basis of the information and explanations obtained 
by us, your Directors make the following statements 

statements for the year ended 31st March, 
2019, the applicable Accounting Standards 

had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures.

st March, 2019, 
such accounting policies as mentioned in the 

applied consistently and judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent 
have been made so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company 

ended 31st March, 2019.

taken for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities. 

prepared on a going concern basis.

followed by the Company and that such 

were operating effectively.

f) that proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws were 
in place and that such systems were adequate 
and operating effectively.

Extract of Annual Return

Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return in 

- C).

Related Party Transactions 

All transactions entered by the Company with 
Related parties were in the Ordinary course of 
business and at Arm’s Length pricing basis. There 

transactions, pecuniary transactions or 
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relationships between the Company and its 

Company. Suitable disclosures as required under 
INDAS-24 have been made in Note 27 of the 

All the transactions entered into by the Company 
with any of the related parties during the year were 
in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s 
length basis. Form AOC-2, as required under 

Further, pursuant to Housing Finance Companies 

Directions, 2016, the Related Party Transaction 
Policy of the Company forms part of this Board’s 

on the website of the Company.

Material changes and commitments affecting 

have occurred between 31st March, 2019 and 
20th May, 2019 (date of the Report)

There were no material changes and commitments 

st March, 
th May, 2019).

Risk Management Policy

The company’s business activities expose it to a 
variety of risks including credit risk, operational 
risk and interest rate risk. Risk management forms 
an integral part of company’s business. The 
objective of the Company’s risk management 
system is to measure and monitor various risks 
and to implement policies and procedures to 
mitigate such risks.

The Company manages credit risk through 
stringent credit norms aided by a robust in-house 
developed IT infrastructure. Liquidity risk and 
interest rate risk arising out of maturity mismatch 
of assets and liabilities are managed through 

Operational risks arising from inadequate or failed 
internal processes, people and systems or from 
external events are adequately addressed by the 
internal control systems and are continuously 
reviewed and monitored. Standard Operating 
Procedures are well documented to ensure 
enhanced control over processes and regulatory 
compliance.

Internal Control Systems and their 
Adequacy

commensurate with the size and nature of its 
operations. These internal control and systems 
are devised as part of the principles of good 
governance; and are accordingly implemented 
within the framework of proper check and 
balances. Your Company ensures that a 
reasonably effective internal control framework 
operates throughout the organisation, which 
provides assurance about safeguarding the 

information, compliance with applicable statues, 
execution of transactions as per the authorisation 
and compliance with the internal policies of the 
Company. 

Internal Audit

As part of the effort to evaluate the effectiveness 
of the internal control systems your Company has 
appointed M/s. SNB Associates, Chartered 
Accountants as the internal auditor of the Company 
to review the internal audit functions and other 
control measures on a periodic basis and to 
recommend improvements, wherever appropriate. 
The Audit Committee reviews and evaluates 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control environment and monitors the 
implementation of audit recommendations.

Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee
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constituted by the Board at their meeting held on 
11th February, 2019, in compliance with the 
requirements of Section 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The Company has in place a Corporate 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Policy) Rules, 2014, as amended, which, inter-
alia, lays down the guidelines and mechanism for 
undertaking socially useful projects for welfare 
and sustainable development of the community at 
large. The composition of the CSR Committee and 
its terms of reference are given in the Report on 
Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual 
Report. The Annual Report on CSR activities 

Board Evaluation

and the Directors have carried out annual 
evaluation / annual performance evaluation, 
covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning 
such as adequacy of the composition of the Board 
and its Committees, Board culture, execution and 

governance. The performance evaluation of the 
Independent Directors was carried out by the 
entire Board. This enabled in assessment of Board 
effectiveness, performance of Committees and 
Directors’ feedback.

Meetings of the Board

meetings of the Board of Directors were held and 
the related details, including that of various 
committees constituted by the Board, are made 
available in the Report of Directors on Corporate 
Governance forming part of the annual report 
placed before the members. Your Company has 
complied with all the requirements as applicable 
under Companies Act, 2013 and related rules 

Directions, 2016, in relation to the Board of 
Directors and the Committees of the Board.

Committees of the Board:

Currently the Board has six Committees viz. the 
Audit Committee, the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the 
Asset Liability Management Committee, the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and 
the IT Strategy Committee. The Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee and IT Strategy 

year 2018-19. 

A detailed note on the composition of the Board 
and its Committees and other related particulars 
are provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance forming part of this Annual Report

Disclosure Under Paragraph 29 of the 
Housing Finance Companies (NHB) 
Directions, 2010

The Company has complied with requirements 

2010 except for one instance detailed below:

Finance Companies Directions, 2010, no Housing 
Finance Company shall lend to any single borrower 

Sup./A-2718/2019 dated 25th March, 2019 had 
imposed a penalty of ̀  15000 and GST thereon for 
non-compliance of credit concentration norm as 
required under above said para and the same was 

st 

March, 2019. 

Conservation of energy, technology 
absorption, foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo

Company and does not own any manufacturing 
facility, the requirement relating to providing the 
particulars relating to conservation of energy and 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 
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applicable. However, your Company has been 
increasingly using information technology in its 
operations and promotes conservation of 
resources. During the year, your Company did not 
earn any income or incur any expenditure in 
foreign currency/exchange.

Management Discussion and Analysis
Indian Economy Overview:

on the back of domestic resilience. Growth eased 
to 7.3% in the subsequent quarter due to rising 

normalized monetary policy in advanced 
economies, externalities from trade disputes, and 
investment rerouting. Further, the Indian rupee 
suffered because of the crude price shock. Despite 
softer growth, the Indian economy remains one of 
the fastest growing and possibly the least affected 
by global turmoil. In fact, the effects of the 
aforementioned external shocks were contained in 
part by India’s strong macroeconomic 

amendments to the policy / code related to 
insolvency and bankruptcy, bank recapitalization, 
and foreign direct investment).

GDP Growth:

2018-19, and is expected to grow 7.5% in the 
following two years, as forecasted by World Bank. 
These projections could be attributed to the 
sustained rise in consumption and a gradual 
revival in investments, especially with a greater 
focus on infrastructure development. In 
comparison to the growth trend, HHF has achieved 

as on Mar 2019. The improving macroeconomic 
fundamentals have further been supported by the 
implementation of reform measures, which has 
helped foster an environment to boost investments 
and ease banking sector concerns. Together, 
these augur well for a healthy growth path for the 
economy. India has already surpassed France to 
become the sixth largest economy. By 2019, it 

possibly the third largest in 25 years.

Real Estate Industry & Affordable Housing:

Real Estate sector in India is expected to reach a 
market size of US$ 1 trillion by 2030 from US$ 120 
billion in 2017 and contribute 13 per cent of the 
country’s GDP by 2025. The Indian real estate 
market went through a sea change in the year 
2018. The various shades of the domestic market 
came on surface, where certain geographic 
pockets witnessed a dip in terms of property 
valuation and sales volume. And, certain pockets 
witnessed property price appreciation and sharp 
growth. Impact of landmark regulatory policies 
such as RERA, GST and the Benami Transactions 
Prohibition Act along with demonetisation also 
changed the real estate landscape. 

help in restoring buyer’s faith in the sector and so 
did the GST that subsumed several state and 
central levies and made home purchase much 
less complicated. Demonetisation ensured only 
genuine buyers remained in the market. 
Consequently, there has been no unreasonable 
rise in property rates.

In the meantime, proceedings are underway 
against several developers for delaying projects, 
duping buyers and siphoning off funds. Those with 
bad records will certainly be weeded out as the 
sector enters a new phase. To put it succinctly, the 
year 2018 set the tone for a complete recovery of 
India’s realty, based on changes on the ground. 
Expecting any magical changes in the year 2019 
may be assuming if one predicted a full recovery 
even if we factor in a spike in demand and a hike 
in sales. The ongoing liquidity crisis in non-banking 

crisis is expected to linger for a few more months 
atleast.

industry in 2018, courtesy government’s schemes 

urbanization and the lack of planned affordable 
housing in India have led to a shortage of 10 – 12 
million urban homes and 26 – 37 million urban 
households residing in informal housing, often in 
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poor living conditions. 2018 has been a mixed 
bag. If you segment geographically, prices have 
been stagnant in real terms in most markets and 
have actually fallen in several markets. This has 
been bad for investors, but has been very good for 
home buyers. If you segment on the basis of 
property value, it’s the higher end, which has seen 
big drop in prices. At the lower end, the prices 

jump in volumes. HHF’s average ticket size of INR 
17.1 Lakhs is a testimony to this. It is this lower 
end of the real estate market that has contributed 

It is this rise in volume in the lower end of the realty 
segment that has seen a spike in the number of 
competitors in the affordable housing segment. 

clusters in FY 19) and a Location Count of 423 

major segment of the low-income household 
works in the informal sector and do not possess 
reliable documentation of income and therefore 
cannot obtain housing loans from banks and 

focus on middle and high – income formal sector 
customers and provide loans on the basis of 
reliable income documentation.

Indian First Time Home Buyer – An opportunity for 
the HFCs:

India was in his late 50’s. More recently, things 
have changed and today, the average home buyer 

to-late 20’s. This shift can be largely attributed to 
higher disposable incomes, easy access to 

& indeed a change in the consumer mindset. The 
cultural shift from joint families to nuclear families 
in cities has also contributed to the demand for 
more houses. Working couples today, place a 
much higher aspirational value on owning a well 
built, safe & comfortable house. Sensing an 

more affordable rates. As the returns from 
investment in a residential property started yielding 
good returns, it made a lot of sense to invest early 
in buying a home.

Keeping in mind the aforesaid opportunities in the 
Indian Affordable Housing Realm, the success of 
HFCs seems unlikely to stop as they are likely to 
continue their steep growth trajectory, as 

and more is likely to come. Debt is also easily 
available. More importantly, there remains a vast, 
unaddressed market of informal, low-income 
aspiring homeowners in urban India.

Challenges:

Balance transfers affect the sustainability of HFCs 

from interest income on the spread, which is 
curtailed in case of a balance transfer as the 
duration of the loan is cut short. During FY 19 HHF 

Balance transfers also adversely impact the 
quality of the loan book as borrowers with good 
repayment behaviour are the ones being poached. 
As a result, the HFCs credit ratings may not 
improve, and returns on capital remain subdued.

As liquidity tightness persists, an increasing 

banks, or partnering with banks on co-origination 
schemes. HFCs of all sizes have reigned in their 
disbursements since the middle of last year. 
Private equity investors, who had been active in 
participating in the growth of emerging HFCs, are 
waiting while the sector is being tested. 

With the aforementioned opportunities and 
challenges, HHF would steer towards achieving 
the targets of FY 20 given the wide spread 
distribution network, group’s backing and 
exceptional cost management approach by 

excluded Indians.

Outlook for FY 2019-20:

growth rate of 18% - 20% in the past 5 years, 
helped by higher government support, lower 

the increasing average ticket size of home loans, 
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HFCs are now addressing these urban informal 
customers using an innovation pioneered in India 

them a major competitive edge and also exposes 

to credit and salaried.

Government’s move to incentivize affordable 
housing has come as a shot in the arm for urban 

the Credit Linked Subsidy Scheme. Further, the 
interim budget announced tax sops to boost 

Income tax on notional rent on second self-
occupied house has been exempted. This will 
tempt people to buy a second house. Further, the 
government has proposed rollover of capital gains 
up to Rs 2 crore towards buying 2 houses 
compared to only one under the present scenario. 
This is also expected to lure individuals to buy 
more than one house, driving real estate sales.

HFCs are able to garner market share in the 

strong origination skills, focused approach, 
creation of niches in catering to particular 
categories of customers, relatively superior 
customer service and diverse channels of business 
sourcing. These factors will help them capture 
market share in the future as banks have become 

risk averse and are focussing on high ticket 

Rising urbanisation, nuclearization of families, and 
increase in the number of affordable housing 
projects have augmented the growth of the 
affordable housing sector. The success of HFCs 
seems unlikely to stop as they are likely to continue 

has already entered this market, and more is likely 
to come. 
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Annexure A

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

National Housing Bank (NHB) Directions on Corporate Governance

Bank) Directions, 2016 on 9th February, 2017. In pursuance to the aforesaid directions, the Company has 
framed the following internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance.

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company recognises its role as a corporate citizen and endeavours to adopt the best practices and the 
highest standards of Corporate Governance through transparency in business ethics, accountability to its 
customers, government and others. The Company's activities are carried out in accordance with good 
corporate practices and the Company is constantly striving to better them and adopt the best practices. 
Being a part of Hinduja Group and a subsidiary of Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited, the Company's 
philosophy on Corporate Governance and the Company's corporate governance standards demonstrate 
strong commitment to values, ethics and business conduct.

Board of Directors

As at 31st

non-executive directors and independent directors including 1 woman director. The composition of the Board 
is in conformity with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and corporate governance directions issued by 
National Housing Bank.

Composition and category of Directors

Name of the Director Category DIN
No. of shares held by 

the Directors as at 
March 31, 2019

Mr. S Nagarajan Chairman, Non-Executive 00009236 1#

Mr. Sachin Pillai Managing Director, Executive 06400793 1#

Mr. Gopal Mahadevan Non-Executive / Non-Independent 01746102 1#

Ms. Bhumika Batra Non-Executive / Independent 03502004 Nil
Mr. G S Sundararajan Non-Executive / Independent 00361030 Nil

# Shares held as nominee of the Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited.
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Re-appointment of Director(s) 

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. S Nagarajan, Director is retiring by rotation at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Meetings of the Board

The meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least four times a year, with a maximum time-gap of 

the following dates:

FY 2017 - 18 Meeting Dates
12th May, 2018
18th July, 2018
9th November, 2018
11th February, 2019

The necessary quorum was present at all the meetings. Each Director informs the Company on an annual 
basis about the Board and Committee positions he occupies in other companies including Chairmanships 

last Annual General Meeting

Name
No. of meeting attended / eligible

Board Annual General Meeting
Mr. S Nagarajan 4/4 1/1
Mr. Sachin Pillai 4/4 1/1
Mr. Gopal Mahadevan 4/4 1/1
Ms. Bhumika Batra 4/4 0/1
Mr. G S Sundararajan 4/4 0/1

Meeting(s) of the Independent Directors

Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors had a separate meeting on 12th May, 2018, without the 
presence of Non-Independent Directors and members of management, to review the performance of Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, to review the performance of the Chairman of the Company 

and the Board.. All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting and no adverse feedback 
emanated from the meeting.

Code of conduct

with the provisions of their Code of Conduct. In terms of the Code of Conduct of Independent Directors as 
per Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has adopted the said Code and all the Independent 
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Deed of Covenants with the Company.

Committees of the Board

To focus effectively on the issues and ensure expedient resolution of diverse matters, the Board has 

operating as empowered agents of the Board as per their Charter / terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company, vide their resolution dated 31st March, 2017, had constituted and 

processes and thus ensure accurate and timely disclosures that maintain the transparency, integrity and 

Composition of Audit Committee of the Board is as follows: 

Name
No. of meetings 

attended / held during 
the year

Meeting Dates

Mr. G S Sundararajan 
Chairman, Independent / Non-executive

4/4
12th May, 2018
18th July, 2018

9th November, 2018
11th February, 2019

Ms. Bhumika Batra 
Independent / Non-executive

4/4

Mr. Gopal Mahadevan 
Non-independent / Non-executive

4/4

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company, vide their resolution dated 31st March, 2017, had constituted the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee in pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
terms of reference of the Committee inter alia cover evaluation of performance and compensation and 

recommends candidates for appointment to the Board and is responsible for framing of policies.

Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows

Name No. of meetings attended / 
held during the year Meeting Dates

Ms. Bhumika Batra 
Chairperson, Independent / Non-executive

2/2

12th May, 2018
9th November, 2018

Mr. G S Sundararajan 
Independent / Non-executive

2/2

Mr. Gopal Mahadevan 
Non-independent / Non-executive

2/2

Mr. Sachin Pillai 
Non-independent / Executive

2/2
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Risk Management Committee and Asset Liability Management Committee

formed in accordance with Directions issued by the National Housing Bank.

Compostion of Risk Management Comittee and Asset Liability Management Committees are as follows:

Risk Management Committee

Name No. of meetings 
attended / eligible Meeting Dates

Mr. Gopal Mahadevan 
Non-independent / Non-executive

2/2

12th May, 2018
9th November, 2018

Mr. G S Sundararajan 
Independent / Non-executive

2/2

Mr. S Nagarajan 
Non-independent / Non-executive

2/2

Asset Liability Management Committee*

Name & Designation
No. of meetings 

attended / held during 
the year

Meeting Dates

Mr. S. Nagarajan, Director, Chairman 4/4 11th May, 2018

23rd October, 2018

11th February, 2019

25th March, 2019

Mr. Sachin Pillai, Managing Director, Member 4/4

Mr. Venkatesh Kannappan, COO, Member 4/4

Ms. Roopa Sampath Kumar, CFO, Member 4/4

* Asset Liability Management Committee was reconstituted vide Board Resolution dated 11th February, 
2019.

IT Strategy Committee

Composition of IT strategy Committee is as follows;

Name & Designation
Mr. G S Sundararajan, Chairman, Independent / Non-executive 
Mr. Sachin Pillai, Non-independent / Non-executive
Mr. Venkatesan J – Chief Manager IT

* IT Strategy Committee was constituted vide Board resolution dated 11th February, 2019
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Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

the Board in compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company 

alia, lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful projects for welfare and 
sustainable development of the community at large. The composition of the CSR Committee and its terms 
of reference are given in the Report on Corporate Governance forming part of this Annual Report. The 

Composition of CSR Committee is as follows;

Name & Designation
Mr. S Nagarajan, Chairman, Non-executive
Mr Sachin Pillai, Non-independent / Non-executive
Ms. Bhumika Batra, Independent / Non-executive

* CSR Committee was constituted vide Board Resolution dated 11th February, 2019

Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy 

Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company had approved the Policy on Vigil Mechanism/Whistle 
Blower for the Directors, employees and other stakeholders to enable them to report concerns about 
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Company 

that no complaints were received during the year. 

Policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Work place

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on 
Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the requirements of 

terms of the policy an Internal committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual 

referrals received by the Internal Committee. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Chennai S. Nagarajan
Date : 20th May, 2019 Chairman



Annual Report 2018 - 2019 17

Annexure B

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

st March 2019
 

To
The Members,
Hinduja Housing Finance Limited
CIN U65922TN2015PLC100093
No. 27A, Developed Industrial Estate,
Guindy, Chennai - 600032.
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the 
st March 2019 complied with 

the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

st March 2019 according to the 
provisions of:

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

Directions, 2010 as applicable to Housing Finance companies not eligible for accepting public deposits.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director, Non-
Executive Directorsand Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors 
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’views are captured and recorded as part 
of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the companyhas:

1. Issued 3,00,00,000 equity shares of `10/- each on 31st December, 2018 to its Equity Shareholders on 
right basis.

th March, 2019 
from National Housing Bank imposing a penalty of ` 15,000/- for non-compliance of the paragraph 

the company on 24th April,2019.

FOR G RAMACHANDRAN & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries

 
G. RAMACHANDRAN 

Place : Chennai Proprietor 
Date : 20th May, 2019 FCS No.9687 CoP No.3056

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral 
part of this report.
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ANNEXURE – SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE

To
The Members,
Hinduja Housing Finance Limited
CIN U65922TN2015PLC100093
No. 27A, Developed Industrial Estate,
Guindy,
Chennai - 600032.

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

basis for our opinion.

of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 

basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company not of the 

FOR G RAMACHANDRAN & ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries

 
G. RAMACHANDRAN 

Place : Chennai Proprietor 
Date : 20th May, 2019 FCS No.9687 CoP No.3056
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Annexure C
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
st March, 2019

 

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS
1 CIN U65922TN2015PLC100093

2 Registration Date 15/04/2015
3 Name of the Company Hinduja Housing Finance Limited
4 Category / Sub-category of the Company Company Limited by Shares

Indian Non-Government Company
5

details
No. 27A, Developed Industrial Estate, Guindy, 
Chennai TN 600032 Ph - 044 39252555

6 Whether listed company Unlisted
7 Name, Address & contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any
Not Applicable

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

S. 
No.

Name and Description of main products/ 
services

NIC Code of the 
Product / service

% to total turnover of 
the company

1 Housing Finance Activities 65922 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. 
No.

Name and address of 
the Company CIN / GLN

Holding / 
Subsidiary / 
Associate

% of 
shares 

held

Applicable 
Section

1 Hinduja Leyland 
Finance Limited

U65993TN2008PLC069837 Holding 100.00
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

` in Lakhs)

Particulars
Secured Loans  

excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 62,070.65 - - 62,070.65

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due 133.53 - - 133.53

Total (i+ii+iii) 62,204.18 - - 62,204.18

* Addition 59,779.49 11,350.91 - 71,130.39

* Reduction -11,626.32 -11,350.91 - -22,977.23

Net Change 48,153.17 - - 48,153.17

i) Principal Amount 1,10,044.33 - - 1,10,044.33

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due 313.02 - - 313.02

Total (i+ii+iii) 1,10,357.35 - - 1,10,357.35

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Particulars of Remuneration
Total Amount  

(` in Lacs)Name Sachin Pillai

Designation Managing Director

Nil

Note: All the KMPs have been nominated by Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited, the Holding Company and no 
remuneration is borne by this Company.
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B. Remuneration to other directors:

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount  
(` in Lacs)Independent Directors Mr. Bhumika Batra Mr. G S Sundararajan

 -  Fee for attending board / 
committee meetings

 2.70  3.24  5.94 

 - Commission  -  -  - 

 - Others, please pecify  -  -  - 

Total  2.70  3.24  5.94 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Managerial Personnel
Total Amount  

(` in Lacs)Name Ms. Roopa Sampath Kumar Mr. Baalasubramaniyan Ne.

Designation CFO CS

Nil

Note: All the KMPs have been nominated by Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited, the Holding Company and 
no remuneration is borne by this Company

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type
Section of the 

Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / 

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT /

COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY
Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

NILPunishment

Compounding
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Annexure - D 
Form No. AOC-2 

 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 

transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: 

 All transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties were on an arm’s 
length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 

 The transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties on an arm’s length 
basis were not material in nature.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

 
    
Place : Chennai S. NAGARAJAN 
Date : 20th May, 2019 Chairman
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1. Introduction 

highest standards of professional and ethical 

recognizes that related party transactions 

interest of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, Senior Management, etc. with the 
interest of the Company. 

 In order to ensure that the transactions 

below) are in the best interests of the 
Company and the shareholders, the Board of 
Directors of the Company adopts this policy 
regarding review and approval of Related 
Party Transactions and to set forth the 
procedures under which certain transactions 

2. Policy Objectives 
 This policy is framed pursuant to the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

enactment thereof.

 Provisions of this policy are designed to 
ensure transparency in the approval process 
and reporting and disclosure requirements, in 
terms of the applicable laws. 

3.1 Applicable Law 

 Applicable law means the Companies Act, 
2013, and such other secretarial and 
accounting standards as may be applicable 

enactment thereof. 

3.2 Arms’ length basis

 Arm’s length basis means a transaction 
between two related parties that is conducted 

as if they were unrelated, so that there is no 

Length Basis, guidance may be taken from 
the transfer pricing provisions under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 

3.3. Employees 

bearers of the Company, including but not 
limited to Whole-Time Directors.

3.4 Material Related Party Transaction 

 Material Related Party Transaction means a 

the Companies Act, 2013, the rules made 
thereunder including any statutory 

3.5 Ordinary Course of business (existing 

inserted with more clarity)

 Ordinary Course of Business means: -

a) all such acts and transactions undertaken by 
the Company in the normal routine to conduct 
its business operations and activities and 
includes all such activities which the 
Company can undertake as per the Objects 
clause of the Memorandum of Association of 
the Company. The Company should take into 
account the frequency of the activity and its 
continuity carried out in a normal organized 
manner for determining what is in the 
Ordinary Course Business. 

b) On occasions, the nature of the business 
carried out and industry practice in 
accordance with well settled customs and 
usages would help determining whether an 

or not. 

Annexure - E 
Related Party Transactions Policy
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c) Activities in the ordinary course of business 
are likely to have a well-established 
precedence in the company history. If an 

is likely not part of the ordinary course of 
business.

d) Regular and frequently occurring activities 
will typically be considered to be unremarkable 
and in the ordinary course of business. 
Transactions which are infrequent and occur 

once every 18 months.

e) Activities where the quantum of transactions 
are consistent with past history 

f) the following activities will generally not be 
considered as part of the ordinary course of 
business: 

of Arrangement between related entities 

entities 

companies) 

related entities 

subsidiaries) 

Institutional Investor Advisory Services – A 
Proxy Advisory Firm

3.6 Related Party Transactions

in the Companies Act, 2013, including any 

thereof. 

 All other words and expressions used but not 

Companies Act, 2013 shall have the same 
meaning as respectively assigned to them in 
such Acts, Rules or Regulations or any 

thereto, as the case may be and as the 

4. Related Party Transactions 

 All related party transactions and material 
related party transactions of the Company 
shall be carried out in accordance with the 

re-enactment thereof. 

5. Related Party Transactions, which shall 
not require the approval 

 The following transactions shall not require 
separate approval under this Policy:

providing of compensation to a Director 
or Key Managerial Personnel, in 
accordance with the provisions of the 
statutory laws stated herein this policy in 
connection with his or her duties to the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries or 
Associates, including the reimbursement 
of reasonable business and travel 
expenses incurred in the Ordinary 
Course of Business;

expenses made pursuant to any 
agreement or by-laws of the Company;

Party’s interest arises solely from 
ownership of securities issued by the 
Company and all holders of such 

rata as the Related Party;

Course of Business and on an Arm’s 
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Length Basis as determined in terms of 
this Policy;

holding company and its wholly owned 
subsidiary whose accounts are 
consolidated with such holding company 
and placed before the shareholders at 
the general meeting for approval;

provisions of the Act, e.g. inter-corporate 
deposits, borrowings, investments with 
or in wholly owned subsidiaries or other 
Related Parties;

restructuring, such as buy-back of 
shares, capital reduction, merger, 
demerger, approved by the Board and 
carried out in accordance with the 

Listing Agreement;

Responsibility, subject to approval of 
Corporate Social Responsibility 
Committee and within the overall limits 
approved by the Board of the Company;

with the Applicable Law, including any 
Rules or Regulations made thereunder, 
and must be approved in advance by 
the Audit Committee.

6. Related Party Transactions not previously 
approved 

 In the event the Company becomes aware of 
a Related Party Transaction with a Related 
Party that has not been approved under this 
Policy prior to its consummation, the matter 
shall be reviewed by the Audit Committee. 
The Audit Committee shall consider all of the 
relevant facts and circumstances regarding 

the Related Party Transaction, and shall 
evaluate all options available to the Company, 

of the Related Party Transaction. The Audit 
Committee shall also examine the facts and 
circumstances pertaining to the failure of 
reporting such Related Party Transaction to 
the Committee under this Policy and shall 
take any such action it deems appropriate. 

 Further, if the Related Party Transaction is 

on which such contract or arrangement is 
entered into, such contract or arrangement 
shall be voidable at the option of the Board 
and if the contract or arrangement is with a 
related party to any director, or is authorized 
by any other director, the directors concerned 
shall indemnify the company against any loss 
incurred by it. 

 The Company may proceed against a director 
or any other employee who had entered into 
such contract or arrangement in contravention 
of this Policy for recovery of any loss 
sustained by it as a result of such contract or 
arrangement and shall take any such action, 
it deems appropriate. 

7. Disclosures: 

 All related party transactions during the 
quarter shall be reported to the Audit 
Committee during its quarterly / annual 
meetings considering unaudited / audited 

 Such other disclosures as may be required 
under the statutory laws referred in this 
policy. 

8. Power to amend the policy

 The Board of Directors reserves the power to 
review and amend this policy from time to 
time as and when necessary.
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Annexure F 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19

1) A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, 
including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to 
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programs.com 

activities to be undertaken by the Company as 
recommended by the CSR Committee and 
approved by the Board of Directors in such 
projects or programs relating to activities 

Company’s CSR Policy has been uploaded on 
the website of the Company under the web-link: 

2) The composition of the CSR Committee: Mr. S. Nagarajan – Chairman

Ms. Bhumika Batra – Member

Mr. Sachin Pillai - Member
3) ` 882.88 Lakhs

4)
amount as in item 3 above)

` 17.66 Lakhs

5)

2018-19
` 17.66 Lakhs

b) Amount unspent, if any: ` 17.66 Lakhs

S. No. CSR 
Project

or activity

Sector in 
which

the project 
is

covered

Projects or
Programs

1) local area or 
other

2) specify the
State and district
where projects

or programs was
undertaken

Amount outlay

project or programs-
wise.

Amount
Spent on the Projects 

or Programs
Sub-heads:

1) Direct expenditure
on projects
or programs

2) Overheads

Cumulative
Expenditure

Up to the
Reporting

Period

Amount
Spent direct
Or through

Implementing

details of 
implementing 

agency)

Nil
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the amount in the Board’s report:

would be evaluating the projects undertaken by HLF to consider the feasibility of aligning the Company’s 
CSR projects with HLF to meet its CSR obligations.

7. Responsibility Statement by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

 We hereby state that implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR 
objectives and Policy of the Company.

   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Chennai Sachin Pillai S. Nagarajan 
Date : 20th May, 2019 Managing Director Chairman of the CSR Committee
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of Hinduja Housing Finance Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial 
Statements

Opinion

which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 

statement of changes in equity and statement of 

explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

other comprehensive income, changes in equity 

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

under those SAs are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of 
Directors is responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information 
included in the director’s report, but does not 

report thereon. The Company’s director’s report is 
expected to be made available to us after the date 
of this auditor’s report. 

cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the 

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. When we read the Company’s director’s 
report, if we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance.

Management's Responsibility for the 
Financial Statements 

The Company’s management and Board of 
Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 

loss and other comprehensive income, changes in 

accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of Hinduja Housing Finance Limited

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant 
to the preparation and presentation of the 

and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

and Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for 

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 

are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the 

Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the company has 

the operating effectiveness of such controls.

policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or 

the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related 

such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

including the disclosures, and whether the 



38 Annual Report 2018 - 2019

transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with 
governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and 

during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements

the Central Government in terms of section 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

we report that:

  a)  We have sought and obtained all 
the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit.

  b)  In our opinion, proper books of 
account as required by law have 
been kept by the Company so far as 
it appears from our examination of 
those books. 

  c)  The balance sheet, the statement of 

comprehensive income), the 

statement of changes in equity and 

with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

  d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid 

133 of the Act. 

  e)  On the basis of the written 
representations received from the 
directors as on 31 March 2019 
taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is 

from being appointed as a director 

Act.

  f)  With respect to the adequacy of the 

the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer 

included in the Auditors’ Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the 

2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:

  i.  The Company does not have any 
pending litigations which would 

March 2019.

  ii.  The Company has made provision, 
as required under the applicable 
law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, 
on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts - Refer Notes 6, 
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  iii.  There were no amounts which were 
required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company

statements regarding holdings as 

notes during the period from 8 
November 2016 to 30 December 
2016 have not been made in these 

ended 31 March 2019. 

(C) With respect to the matter to be included 
in the Auditors’ Report under section 
197(16): 

In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the remuneration 

paid by the company to its directors during the 
current year is in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to 
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down 
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details 

commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s registration number: 101248W/ W-100022
 

Naveen Raj R
Partner
Membership No. 203491

Place : Chennai
Date : 20th May, 2019
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the members of Hinduja Housing Finance Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2019 

records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and 

over a period of two years in a phased 
manner. In our opinion, this periodicity 

having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. In 
accordance with this programme, some 

the year and as explained to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on 

explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the Company does not 
have any immovable properties. 

order is not applicable to the company.

primarily engaged in lending activities. 
Accordingly, it does not hold any physical 

is not applicable to the Company.

limited liability partnerships or other parties 
covered in the register required to be 
maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, 

given to us, the Company has not given any 
loan, or made investment, or provided any 

remaining provisions of section 186 of the Act 
do not apply to the Company.

and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposits either as per 
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 
or any other relevant provisions of the Act 
and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, 

to the Company.

the maintenance of cost records under 
section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
any of the services rendered by the Company. 

not applicable to the Company.

explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, amounts deducted / 
accrued in the books of account in 
respect of undisputed statutory dues 
including provident fund, employees’ 
state insurance, goods and service tax, 
income tax and other material statutory 
dues have generally been regularly 
deposited by the Company with the 
appropriate authorities. As explained to 
us, the Company did not have any dues 
on account of sales tax, duty of excise, 
value added tax, duty of customs and 
cess.

  According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, goods and service tax and 
other material statutory dues were in 
arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period 
of more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

explanations given to us, there are no 
dues in respect of income tax and goods 



Annual Report 2018 - 2019 41

ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the members of Hinduja Housing Finance Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2018 

and services tax that have not been 
deposited on account of any disputes.

and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to its 
bankers. The Company did not have any 

government or debenture holders during the 
year.

way of initial public offer or further public offer 

However, the Company has raised term 
loans during the year. In our opinion and 
according to the information and explanations 
given to us, term loans taken by the Company 
have been applied for the purpose for which 
they were raised.

given to us, no fraud by the Company or any 

or employees has been noticed or reported 
during the year.

given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of records of the Company, the managerial 
remuneration for the year ended 31 March 
2019 has been paid or provided in accordance 
with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with schedule 
V to the Act and rules framed thereunder.

and explanations given to us, the Company is 
not a nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 

given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the transactions 

with the related parties are in compliance 
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where 
applicable and the details as required by the 
applicable accounting standards has been 

give to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company 
has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. 

not applicable.

given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company 
has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with 

of the Order is not applicable. 

company is registered with National Housing 
Bank and is not required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act 1934.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s registration number: 101248W/ W-100022
 

Naveen Raj R
Partner
Membership No. 203491

Place : Chennai
Date : 20th May, 2019
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with 

(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 
‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of 
even date)

Opinion

March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the 

ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material 

criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of 
Directors are responsible for establishing and 

Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 
These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate 

conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 

the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal 

statements were established and maintained and 
whether such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the members of Hinduja Housing Finance Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2019 
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls 
with Reference to Financial Statements

designed to provide reasonable assurance 

purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal 

statements include those policies and procedures 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 

that transactions are recorded as necessary to 

accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial 
controls with Reference to Financial 
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal 

statements, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s registration number: 101248W/ W-100022
 

Naveen Raj R
Partner
Membership No. 203491

Place : Chennai
Date : 20th May, 2019

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To the members of Hinduja Housing Finance Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2018 
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BALANCE SHEET 
As at 31st March 2019

Note As at  
31 March 2019

As at  
31 March 2018

As at  
1 April 2017

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5  1,127.31  983.08  202.15 
Loans 6  1,22,040.42  69,801.41  44,557.65 
Investments 7  5,292.86  3,854.16  - 

8  1,240.27  1,096.38  647.31 
 1,29,700.86  75,735.03  45,407.11 

9  247.61  171.46  - 
9  -  92.81  64.48 

Property, plant and equipment 10  205.65  100.61  88.69 
Intangible assets 10A  3.95  5.30  6.82 

11  20.21  53.33  95.12 
 477.42  423.51  255.11 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,30,178.28  76,158.54  45,662.22 
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities 
Payables
Trade Payables 

12  -  -  - 
12  42.66  31.61  20.30 

Borrowings 13  1,09,981.34  61,977.49  36,155.81 
14  807.72  352.08  210.69 

 1,10,831.72  62,361.18  36,386.80 

Provisions 15  36.65  29.87  71.54 
9  60.93  -  - 
16  19.47  36.84  40.19 

 117.05  66.71  111.73 
EQUITY 
Equity share capital 17  15,000.00  12,000.00  9,000.00 
Other equity 18  4,229.51  1,730.65  163.69 

 19,229.51  13,730.65  9,163.69 
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  1,30,178.28  76,158.54  45,662.22 

2, 3 & 4

INR In Lakhs

As per our report of even date     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For B S R & Co. LLP     Hinduja Housing Finance Limited    
Chartered Accountants      
ICAI Firm’s registration number: 101248W/ W-100022  S Nagarajan   Sachin Pillai 
       Chairman   Managing Director
Naveen Raj R     DIN No. 00009236  DIN No : 06400793 
Partner         
Membership No: 217772    Roopa Sampath Kumar  Baalasubramaniyan Ne. 
       Company Secretary
Place  : Chennai Place : Chennai  
Date : 20th May, 2019 Date : 20th May, 2019
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 
For the year ended 31st March 2019

Particulars Note
For the 

year ended 31 
Mar 2019 

For the 
year ended 31 

Mar 2018

Revenue from operations
Interest income 19  12,958.24  7,763.04 
Fees and commission income 19  64.46  22.32 
Income from other services 19  1,000.00  876.57 
Total Revenue from operations  14,022.70  8,661.93 
Expenses
Finance costs 20  7,003.39  4,337.08 

21  410.36  473.61 
22  1,814.77  897.34 

Depreciation and amortization 23  59.88  37.60 
Other expenses 24  1,202.88  674.58 
Total Expenses  10,491.28  6,420.21 

 3,531.42  2,241.72 
Tax expense: 25
Current tax  876.42  707.40 

 154.48 
 1,030.90  677.82 
 2,500.52  1,563.90 

Other comprehensive income

 4.30 
 0.68 

Total other comprehensive income  (1.66)  3.06 
Total comprehensive Income  2,498.86  1,566.96 

`10 each) 26
`)  1.96  1.60 

`)  1.96  1.60 
2, 3 & 4

INR In Lakhs

As per our report of even date     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For B S R & Co. LLP     Hinduja Housing Finance Limited    
Chartered Accountants      
ICAI Firm’s registration number: 101248W/ W-100022  S Nagarajan   Sachin Pillai 
       Chairman   Managing Director
Naveen Raj R     DIN No. 00009236  DIN No : 06400793 
Partner         
Membership No: 217772    Roopa Sampath Kumar  Baalasubramaniyan Ne. 
       Company Secretary
Place  : Chennai Place : Chennai  
Date : 20th May, 2019 Date : 20th May, 2019
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As per our report of even date     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For B S R & Co. LLP     Hinduja Housing Finance Limited    
Chartered Accountants      
ICAI Firm’s registration number: 101248W/ W-100022  S Nagarajan   Sachin Pillai 
       Chairman   Managing Director
Naveen Raj R     DIN No. 00009236  DIN No : 06400793 
Partner         
Membership No: 217772    Roopa Sampath Kumar  Baalasubramaniyan Ne. 
       Company Secretary
Place  : Chennai Place : Chennai  
Date : 20th May, 2019 Date : 20th May, 2019

INR In Lakhs

Particulars  Number of shares  Amount 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Balance as at 1 April 2017  9,00,00,000  9,000.00 

Add: Issued during the year  3,00,00,000  3,000.00 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  12,00,00,000  12,000.00 

Add: Issued during the year  3,00,00,000  3,000.00 

Balance as at 31 March 2019  15,00,00,000  15,000 

B. Other equity Reserves and Surplus
TotalStatutory 

Reserves
Retained 
Earnings

Balance as at 1 April 2017  37.87  125.82  163.69 
 -  1,563.90  1,563.90 

Transfer to reserve  312.78  - 
 -  3.06  3.06 

Balance as at 31 March 2018  350.65  1,380.00  1,730.65 
 -  2,500.52  2,500.52 

Transfer to reserve  500.10  - 
 - 

Balance as at 31 March 2019  850.75  3,378.76  4,229.51 

STATEMET OF CHANGE IN EQUITY 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019

2, 3 & 4
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For the 
year ended 31 

Mar 2019 

For the 
year ended 

31 Mar 2018

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 3,531.42  2,241.72 

Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization  59.88  37.60 

 410.36  473.61 

Finance cost  7,003.39  4,337.08 

Interest on security deposit

Rent expense  32.36  17.90 

Interest income on investments

 10,609.23  6,879.96 

Changes in working capital:

Loans

 33.12  41.79 

Trade payables  11.05  11.31 

 276.15  47.90 

Net cash (used in) operations  (41,906.54)  (19,216.97)

Finance cost paid

Net cash (used in) operating activities (A)  (49,704.00)  (24,383.99)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
For the year ended 31st March 2019

INR In Lakhs
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For the 
year ended 31 

Mar 2019 

For the 
year ended 

31 Mar 2018

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

 - 

Interest income on investments  386.91  207.91 

NET CASH FROM/ (used in) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)  (1,155.62)  (3,656.76)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of equity shares  3,000.00  3,000.00 

 48,003.85  25,821.68 

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)  51,003.85  28,821.68 

 144.23  780.93 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  983.08  202.15 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  1,127.31  983.08 

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cheques on hand 5  11.69  6.65 

Balances with banks 

-In current accounts 5  1,115.62  976.43 

 1,127.31  983.08 

2,3&4

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
For the year ended 31st March 2019

INR In Lakhs

As per our report of even date     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
For B S R & Co. LLP     Hinduja Housing Finance Limited    
Chartered Accountants      
ICAI Firm’s registration number: 101248W/ W-100022  S Nagarajan   Sachin Pillai 
       Chairman   Managing Director
Naveen Raj R     DIN No. 00009236  DIN No : 06400793 
Partner         
Membership No: 217772    Roopa Sampath Kumar  Baalasubramaniyan Ne. 
       Company Secretary
Place  : Chennai Place : Chennai  
Date : 20th May, 2019 Date : 20th May, 2019
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Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019

1 Reporting entity

National Housing Bank Act, 1987 with effect from 30 September 2015. The Company is primarily 
engaged in the business of providing loans for the purchase or construction of residential houses.

2 Basis of preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

Act and other relevant provisions of the Act.

2019.

 Details of the Company's accounting policies are disclosed in note 3.

 The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or 

offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on 
a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs and at two decimal places, 
unless otherwise indicated.



50 Annual Report 2018 - 2019

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019

2.4 Basis of measurement

Items Measurement basis
Fair value of plan assets less present value of 

2.5 Use of estimates and judgements

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively.

 Judgements

 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made judgements, 

 i) Business model assessment

including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the 
risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers 

cost. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model 

whether there has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the 

  Estimates and assumptions

  The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due 
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such 
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price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values 

active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of 
valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, 
but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values. 

expense using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over 
the expected behavioral life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different 

prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

  This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavior and 
life-cycle of the instruments, as well as expected changes to interest rates and other fee income/ 
expense that are integral parts of the instrument.

risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different 
levels of allowances.

number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their 
interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and 
estimates include :

  b) Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

  c)  Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs, such 
as gross domestic products, domestic demand and collateral values, and the effect on 

  d)  Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to 
derive the economic inputs into ECL models.

 v) Provisions and other contingent liabilities

  The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened 
element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, 
arbitration and regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of the Company's 
business.

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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contingent liability is disclosed.

  Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the 
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter 

these estimates.

  These estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other factors, including 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that the estimates 

3.1 Recognition of Interest Income

A. EIR method

instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 

discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company 
recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of 

risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset 
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is subsequently 

B. Interest income

assets other than credit impaired assets.

the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

3.2 Financial instrument - Initial recognition

A. Date of recognition

provisions of the instrument.

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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this amount.

and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at amortised cost.

3.3 Financial assets and liabilities

A. Financial assets

 Business model assessment

 The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher 
level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

model are evaluated and reported to the Company's key management personnel.

that business model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed.

 d) The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s 
assessment.

 SPPI test

asset to identify whether they meet SPPI test.

amortisation of the premium/ discount).

for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies 
judgement and considers relevant factors such as the period for which the interest rate is set.

 In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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interest on the principal amount outstanding.

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Since, the loans and advances are held 

  Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any 

  These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
The amortised cost is reduced by impairment lossed. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and 

B.  Financial liability

 i) Initial recognition and measurement

or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

 ii) Subsequent measurement

  Financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business 

assets or liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the 
difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not 

purposes.

 i) Financial Assets

which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of 

  Accordingly, gain on sale or derecognition of assigned portfolio are recorded upfront in the 

a percentage of interest spread over tenure of loan in cases where it retains the obligation to 

 ii) Financial Liability

A. Overview of ECL principles

 Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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 Both LTECLs and 12 months ECLs are calculated on collective basis.

 Based on the above, the Company catagorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described 
below:

 Stage 1:

stage 3.

 Stage 2:

allowance for the life time ECL. Stage 2 loans also includes facilities where the credit risk has improved 

 Stage 3:

 Loans considered credit impaired are the loans which are past due for more than 90 days. The Company 
records an allowance for life time ECL.

 Loan commitments:

 When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Company estimates the expected portion 
of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is then based on the 

 The mechanics of ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

 PD:

default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously 
derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

 EAD:

expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and 
interest

 LGD:

lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually expressed 
as a percentage of the EAD

 The Company has calculated PD, EAD and LGD to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of loans 
and discounted at an approximation to the EIR. At every reporting date, the above calculated PDs, EAD 
and LGDs are reviewed and changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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 The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

 Stage 1:

 The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from 

The Company calculates the 12 months ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring 
in the 12 months following the reporting date. These expected 12-months default probabilities are 
applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD and discounted by an approximation to 
the original EIR.

 Stage 2:

than 30 days past due), the Company records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar 
to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The 
expected cash shortfalls are discounted by an approximation to the original EIR.

 Stage 3:

recognises the lifetime expected credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for Stage 2 
assets, with the PD set at 100%.

B. Loans and advances measured at FVOCI

 The ECLs for loans and advances measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these 

allowance that would arise if the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI as an 

C. Forward looking information

 In its ECL models, the Company relies on a broad range of forward looking macro parameters and 
estimated the impact on the default at a given point of time.

 i) Gross domestic products

 ii) Domestic demand

3.7 Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

amount of the assets.

3.8 Write-offs

 Financial assets are written off when the Company has stopped pursuing the recovery. If the amount to 

addition to the allowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent 
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3.9 Determination of fair value

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, the Company has taken into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if 
market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at 
the measurement date.

3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 

prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the 

activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are 
binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date;

derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the 
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted 
prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads; and

the measurement as whole.

3.10 Recognition of revenue and other income

A. Revenue from operations

measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts 
with customers outlines a single comprehensive model of accounting for revenue arising from contracts 
with customers.

in Ind 115 :

parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that 
must be met.

 Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a 
contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

 Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which 
the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a 
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
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 Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that 
has more than one performance obligation, the Company allocates the transaction price to each 
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

B. Fees and commission income

 Fees and commission income such as cheque bounce charges and service income etc. are recognised 
on point in time basis.

C. Income from other services

 Income from other services is recognised on the basis of the terms of the contract entered into with the 
parties.

3.11 Property, plant and equipment

 i. Recognition and measurement

 Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing 
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

 Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties 
and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly 
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of 
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

 ii. Transition to Ind AS

 On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2017, measured as per the previous GAAP, and 
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment. 

 iii. Subsequent expenditure

 iv. Depreciation

 Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual 
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method, and is generally recognised in 

 The Company follows estimated useful lives which are given under Part C of the Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the 
current and comparative periods are as follows:
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Asset category Estimated Useful life
8 years
5 years

Computers 3 years

3.12 Intangible assets

 i. Intangible assets

  Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such 
intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

 ii. Subsequent expenditure

 iii. Transition to Ind AS

  On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2017, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that 
carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

 iv. Amortisation

  Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual 
values over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method, and is included in 

Asset category Estimated Useful life
Computer softwares 6 years

and adjusted if appropriate.

 The Company determines periodically whether there is any indication of impairment of the carrying 

independent of those from other assets or group of assets. The recoverable amounts of such asset are 
estimated, if any indication exists and impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of 
the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount 
of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to 
which the asset belongs.
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charged as an expense as they fall due based on the amount of contribution required to be made 
and when the services are rendered by the employees.

  Gratuity

prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of 

or loss.

  Compensated absences

  The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and 
utilise it in future service periods. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within 

which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured 
on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

the services rendered by employees are recognized during the year when the employees render 
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twelve months after the end of the year in which the employee renders the related service.

3.15 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

 Provisions

be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision 

reimbursement.

 Contingent liability

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the Company or; present obligation that arises from past events where it is not probable that an 

liability and not provided for.

 Contingent asset

 A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 

within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the 

3.16 Leases

 i. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

  At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. 
At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other 
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those 

it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at 
an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are 

rate.

 ii. Lease payments

a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in 

increases.
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3.17 Income tax

the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in other 
comprehensive income.

 i. Current tax

  Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount 

laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

  Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a 
net basis or simultaneously.

 ii. Deferred tax

  Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 

taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax 
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for 

the time of the transaction;

to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence 

against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets – unrecognised or 
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it 

  Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date.

in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.
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  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 

 iii. Minimum Alternate Tax 

MAT paid is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that 
the company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried 
forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognized as an asset is reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no 
longer exists.

3.18 Borrowing cost

 Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowings of funds. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the 

year in which they are incurred.

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, cheques on hand and balances with banks. Cash 

acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and 

 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which 
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the 

evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various 
performance indicators by business segements and geographic segments.

3.21 Earnings per share

 The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with Ind AS 33, 

attributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed and disclosed by dividing 

dilutive potential equity shares for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and 
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive.
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of transactions of a non–cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or 

Company are segregated.

4 Standard issued but not yet effective

the following new and amendments to Ind ASs which the Company has not applied as they are effective 
from April 1, 2019

 Ind AS 116 - Leases

appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind 
AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases 
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the 

with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise 

recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use 
asset. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is similar to existing Ind AS 17 accounting.

 The Company will adopt Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning 1 April 2019. The 

with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application 

cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening 

 Ind AS 12 Income taxes (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and 
uncertainty over income tax treatments)

 The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an Company shall 

comprehensive income or equity according to where the Company originally recognised those past 
transactions or events. The Company does not expect any impact from this pronouncement. It is 
relevant to note that the amendment does not amend situations where the Company pays a tax on 
dividend which is effectively a portion of dividends paid to taxation authorities on behalf of shareholders. 
Such amount paid or payable to taxation authorities continues to be charged to equity as part of 
dividend, in accordance with Ind AS 12.
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Company has to use judgement, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered 
separately or whether some can be considered together. The decision should be based on the approach 

the taxation authority will have full knowledge of all relevant information while examining any amount 

 Ind AS 109 – Prepayment features with negative compensation

 The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order 

other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The Company 

 Ind AS 19 – Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

 The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs, it is mandatory that 
the current service cost and the net interest for the period after the re-measurement are determined 
using the assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to 
clarify the effect of a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement on the requirements regarding the 

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand  4.98  1.45  - 

Balances with Banks 

- In current / cash credit accounts  1,115.62  976.43  202.15 

Cheques on hand  6.71  5.20  - 

Total  1,127.31  983.08  202.15 

- - -

money or security against the borrowings, 
gurantees, other commitments

- - -

bank balances
- - -
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

At amortised cost 

6 LOANS

A. Based on nature

Retail Loans  1,04,159.90  66,004.37  44,773.57 

Term Loans  18,385.30  4,451.78  - 

Total gross  1,22,545.20  70,456.15  44,773.57 

Less : Impairment loss allowance

Total net  1,22,040.42  69,801.41  44,557.65 

B. Based on security

 1,22,545.20  70,456.15  44,773.57 

 -  -  - 

Total gross  1,22,545.20  70,456.15  44,773.57 

Less : Impairment loss allowance

Total net  1,22,040.42  69,801.41  44,557.65 

C. Based on region

(I) Loans in India

 -  -  - 

 1,22,545.20  70,456.15  44,773.57 

Total gross  1,22,545.20  70,456.15  44,773.57 

Less : Impairment loss allowance

Total net (I)  1,22,040.42  69,801.41  44,557.65 

(II) Loans outside India

Loans outside India  -  -  - 

Total net (II)  -  -  - 

Total (I)+(II)  1,22,040.42  69,801.41  44,557.65 

Notes :

1. Retail loans are secured exposures that are secured by assets hypothecated to the company.

2. Term loans are secured exposures that are secured by assets/ underlying portfolio provided to the 
company by the borrower.
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

7 INVESTMENTS

Investment in debentures (unquoted) 

Non-convertible redeemable debentures  1,000.00  1,000.00  - 

(unquoted) 
 4,293.12  2,854.27  - 

Gross Investments  5,293.12  3,854.27  - 

 -  -  - 

 5,293.12  3,854.27  - 

Gross Investments  5,293.12  3,854.27  - 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss  - 

Net Investments  5,292.86  3,854.16  - 

Aggregate book value of unqouted investments  5,293.12  3,854.27  - 
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of 
investments

 - 

8 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Interest accrued

 - on loans and advances  1,052.10  644.03  349.72 

 - on investments  22.22  17.97  10.72 

Employee advances  -  2.75  - 

 165.95  118.93  106.14 

Others receivables  -  312.70  180.73 

Total  1,240.27  1,096.38  647.31 
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

9 TAX ASSETS (NET)

Current tax assets (net)

 247.61  171.46  - 

Deferred tax assets (net) ( refer note 25 )

 92.81  64.48 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars Furniture 
equipment Computers Total 

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying 
amount)
Balance as at 1 April 2017  11.90  10.13  66.66  88.69 
Additions  1.61  14.31  34.08  50.00 
Disposals  -  0.27  2.64  2.91 
Balance as at 31 March 2018  13.51  24.17  98.10  135.78 
Balance as at 1 April 2018  13.51  24.17  98.10  135.78 
Additions  4.32  3.79  159.28  167.39 
Disposals  -  5.06  5.06 
Balance as at 31 March 2019  17.83  27.96  252.32  298.11 
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2017  -  -  -  - 
Depreciation for the year  1.63  3.79  30.66  36.08 
Disposals  -  0.03  0.88  0.91 
Balance as at 31 March 2018  1.63  3.76  29.78  35.17 
Balance as at 1 April 2018  1.63  3.76  29.78  35.17 
Depreciation for the year  1.97  8.76  47.80  58.53 
Disposals  -  -  1.24  1.24 
Balance as at 31 March 2019  3.60  12.52  76.34  92.46 
Carrying amount (net)
As at 1 April 2017  11.90  10.13  66.66  88.69 
As at 31 March 2018  11.88  20.41  68.32  100.61 
As at 31 March 2019  14.23  15.44  175.98  205.65 
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10A INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Particulars Computer 
Software Total 

Cost or deemed cost (gross carrying 
amount)
Balance as at 1 April 2017  6.82  6.82 
Additions  -  - 
Disposals  -  - 
Balance as at 31 March 2018  6.82  6.82 
Balance as at 1 April 2018  6.82  6.82 
Additions  -  - 
Disposals  -  - 
Balance as at 31 March 2019  6.82  6.82 
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2017  -  - 
Depreciation for the year  1.52  1.52 
Disposals  -  - 
Balance as at 31 March 2018  1.52  1.52 
Balance as at 1 April 2018  1.52  1.52 
Depreciation for the year  1.35  1.35 
Disposals  -  - 
Balance as at 31 March 2019  2.87  2.87 
Carrying amount (net)
As at 1 April 2017  6.82  6.82 
As at 31 March 2018  5.30  5.30 
As at 31 March 2019  3.95  3.95 
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

11 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

 Prepaid rent  17.90  50.26  68.16 

 Other advances  2.31  3.07  26.96 

Total  20.21  53.33  95.12 
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 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

At amortised cost

13 BORROWINGS

Secured borrowings 

 1,01,411.87  46,653.57  22,500.00 
Cash credit and working capital demand loans from 

 8,632.46  15,417.08  13,758.21 

Less: Unamortised borrowing costs 

Total  1,09,981.34  61,977.49  36,155.81 

Borrowings in India  1,09,981.34  61,977.49  36,155.81 

Borrowings outside India  -  - 

Total  1,09,981.34  61,977.49  36,155.81 

Total  1,09,981.34  61,977.49  36,155.81 

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

12 TRADE PAYABLE

enterprises 
 -  -  - 

 42.66  31.61  20.30 

Total  42.66  31.61  20.30 

Terms of repayment of borrowings:

Secured borrowing

2) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of borrowings and interest.

Notes to Financial Statements 
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13.1 Details of terms of redemption/ repayment and security provided in respect of term loans

Particulars Amount Terms of redemption/ 
repayment Security

Term loans from banks
Term loan - 1  9,270.01 

installments 
Remaining no. of installments: 26

Exclusive charge on receivables 
of the company

Term loan - 2  10,000.00 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 16

Exclusive charge on the 

receivables from standard assets 
portfolio of receivables.

Term loan - 3  1,933.00 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 24
receivables / book debts other 

other lenders
Term loan - 4  1,209.72 

installments 
Remaining no. of installments: 25

receivables / book debts other 

other lenders
Term loan - 5  2,700.00 

installments 
Remaining no. of installments: 18

receivables 

Term loan - 6  2,625.00 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 21
receivables

Term loan - 7  3,750.00 Repayble in 8 Equal Half-yearly 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 6
receivables

Term loan - 8  9,996.38 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 24
receivables 

Term loan - 9  100.05 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 28

Exclusive Floating charge on 

receivables
Term loan - 10  19,369.38 Repayble in 96 Equal Monthly 

installments 
Remaining no. of installments: 93

Exclusive charge 

Term loan - 11  24,000.00 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 20

Exclusive Charge on Book debts

Notes to Financial Statements 
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

14 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  313.02  133.53  40.04 

 107.26  49.01  35.22 

Payables to related parties 

Dues to Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited  -  26.32  88.78 

Dues to HLF Services Limited  -  117.69  21.62 

Others  387.44  25.53  25.03 

Total  807.72  352.08  210.69 

15 PROVISIONS

Provision for gratuity  20.29  3.93  5.98 

Provision for compensated absences  16.36  4.96  - 

Provision for tax  -  20.98  65.56 

Total  36.65  29.87  71.54 

16 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Statutory liabilities  19.47  36.84  40.19 

Total  19.47  36.84  40.19 

Particulars Amount Terms of redemption/ 
repayment Security

Term loan - 12  4,583.33 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 11

Hypothecation of exclusive 

Term loan - 13  5,000.00 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 12

Hypothecation of exclusive 

Term loan - 14  6,875.00 
installments 

Remaining no. of installments: 22

First charge by way of 

future receivables from the 
performing loan portfolio, which 

from time to time 
Total term loans 
from banks

 1,01,411.87 
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

17 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

2017: 90,000,000) equity shares of `10/- each
 20,000.00  20,000.00  9,000.00 

 20,000.00  20,000.00  9,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up

2017: 90,000,000) equity shares of `10/- each
 15,000.00  12,000.00  9,000.00 

 15,000.00  12,000.00  9,000.00 

Notes:

a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding as at beginning and as 
at end of the year:

As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount 

Equity shares

At the commencement of the year  12,00,00,000  12,000.00  9,00,00,000  9,000.00 

Add: Shares issued during the year  3,00,00,000  3,000.00  3,00,00,000  3,000.00 

At the end of the year  15,00,00,000  15,000.00  12,00,00,000  12,000.00 

b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares  

 The Company has a single class of equity shares having face value of ` 10/- each. Accordingly, all 
equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The 
equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an 

capital of the Company. On winding up, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the 
residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to 
the number of equity shares held.

Notes to Financial Statements 
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INR In Lakhs

c Shares held by holding / ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates
As at  

31 Mar 2019
As at  

31 Mar 2018
As at  

1 Apr 2017
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held No. of shares % held

Equity shares 
Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited, 
holding company and it's nominees

 15,00,00,000 100.00%  12,00,00,000 100.00%  9,00,00,000 100.00%

d Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at  

31 Mar 2019
As at  

31 Mar 2018
As at  

1 Apr 2017
No. of shares % held No. of shares % held No. of shares % held

Equity shares 
Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited, 
holding company and it's nominees

 15,00,00,000 100.00%  12,00,00,000 100.00%  9,00,00,000 100.00%

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

18 OTHER EQUITY

a) Statutory Reserves 

Balance at the beginning of the year 350.65 37.87

500.10 312.78

Balance at the end of the year 850.75 350.65

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,376.94 125.82

2,500.52 1,563.90

Less :Transferred to Statutory Reserve -500.10 -312.78

Balance at the end of the year 3,377.36 1,376.94

c) Other comprehensive income 

Balance at the beginning of the year 3.06  - 

Add: Comprehensive Income for the year -1.66  3.06 

Balance at the end of the year 1.40  3.06 

Total 4,229.51 1,730.65
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Nature and purpose of reserve  

Statutory Reserve u/s. 29C of National Housing Bank Act, 1987 ("the NHB Act, 1987")

Reserve u/s. 29C of NHB Act, 1987 is created in accordance with section 29A of the NHB Act, 1987. As per 
Section 29C of the NHB Act, 1987, No appropriation of any sum from the reserve fund including any sum in 
the special reserve which has been taken into account for the purposes of reserve fund in terms of subsection 

National Housing Bank from time to time  

earlier years. These reserve are free reserves which can be utilised for any purpose as may be required.

excluding interest and the effect of asset ceiling, if any.

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2018

19 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

cost

- Interest income on loans to customers  12,530.06  7,535.09 

- Interest income from investments 

 286.34  211.71 

- Interest income on investment in debentures  104.82  3.45 

- Other interest income  37.02  12.79 

Total (A)  12,958.24  7,763.04 

Fees and commission income 

- Service charges  11.09  0.20 

- Other charges  53.37  22.12 

Total (B)  64.46  22.32 

Income from other services  1,000.00  876.57 

Total (C)  1,000.00  876.57 

Total (A+B+C)  14,022.70  8,661.93 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2018

20 FINANCE COSTS

cost 

Interest on borrowings 

- Interest on term loans  6,263.35  3,437.37 

- Interest on cash credit and working capital demand loan  594.95  569.39 

Other borrowing cost - Discount on commercial paper  145.09  330.32 

Total  7,003.39  4,337.08 

21 IMPAIRMENT ON FINANCIAL ASSETS

Provision for expected credit loss 

- On loans  91.11  438.82 

- On investments  0.15  0.11 

Others - Bad debts written off  319.10  34.68 

Total  410.36  473.61 

22 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 

Salaries, wages and bonus  1,704.35  852.06 

Contribution to provident and other funds  83.47  37.11 

Staff welfare expenses  26.95  8.17 

Total  1,814.77  897.34 

23 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

 58.53  36.08 

 1.35  1.52 

Total  59.88  37.60 
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2018

24 OTHER EXPENSES

Rent  54.85  34.73 

Insurance  28.75  36.82 

Electricity charges  4.24  4.32 

Communication expenses  47.07  32.48 

 450.69  159.83 

Rates and taxes  139.53  105.29 

Bank charges  41.05  107.43 

Printing and stationery  37.13  37.90 

Travelling and conveyance  313.17  96.68 

Subscription and licensing charges  15.60  3.31 

Sitting fees to directors  6.60  5.70 

Advertisement and sale promotion  45.56  43.47 

Other expenses  18.64  6.62 

Total  1,202.88  674.58 

included in legal and professional charges

As auditor

Statutory audit  20.00  12.00 

Tax audit  1.25  1.00 

 2.50  2.00 

Reimbursement of expenses  1.93  1.75 

 25.68  16.75 

25 INCOME TAX

 The components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 
March 2019 and 2018 are:
Current tax  876.42  707.40 

Deferred tax  154.48 

Total tax charge  1,030.90  677.82 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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INR In Lakhs

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2018

 3,531.42  2,241.72 

Applicable tax rate 29.12% 28.84%

Computed tax expense  1,028.35  646.51 

Tax effect of :

Impact on account of change in tax rates  6.95 

Non deductible items  5.14  24.36 

 1,030.90  677.82 

Effective tax rate 29.19% 30.24%

25.1 Reconciliation of the total tax charge

March 2018 is, as follows:-

25.2 DEFERRED TAX 

 The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the 
Income tax expense

 Particulars
As at 

31 Mar 
2018

Statement 

and loss

Other 
compre-
hensive 
income

As at 
31 Mar 
2019

Component of Deferred tax asset / (liability)

Difference between WDV of property, plant and 
equipment as per books of accounts and income 
tax records

 - 

 188.86  -  147.07 

 13.24  23.02  0.68  37.00 

Others  - 

Total  92.81  (154.48)  0.68  (60.93)
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 Particulars As at 
1 Apr 2017

Statement 

and loss

Other 
compre-
hensive 
income

As at 
31 Mar 
2018

Component of Deferred tax asset / (liability)

Difference between WDV of property, plant and 
equipment as per books of accounts and income 
tax records

 2.00  - 

 69.96  118.90  -  188.86 

 1.65  10.35  1.24  13.24 

Others  0.55  - 

Total  64.48  27.09  1.24  92.81 

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars Year ended  
31 Mar 2019

Year ended  
31 Mar 2018

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE (‘EPS’)

Earnings

EPS
 2,500.52  1,563.90 

diluted EPS
 2,500.52  1,563.90 

Shares

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  12,00,00,000  9,00,00,000 

Shares issued during the year  3,00,00,000  3,00,00,000 

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year  15,00,00,000  12,00,00,000 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
year for calculation of basic and diluted EPS

 12,74,79,452  9,77,26,027 

Face value per share 10.00 10.00

Earnings per share

- Basic  1.96  1.60 

- Diluted  1.96  1.60 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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27 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 Name of the related parties and nature of relationship

Holding company / Ultimate 
Holding Company Hinduja Housing Finance Limited

of Machen
Fellow subsidiary
Key management personnel Mr. Sachin Pillai, Managing Director

Mr. Baalasubramaniyan Ne., Company Secretary

Related party transactions

Nature of transaction Holding company 
(HLF)

Fellow subsidiary 
(HSL) KMP

Allotment of equity shares  3,000.00  -  - 
 -  - 

Reimbursement of expenses incurred 
on behalf of HHF

 64.06  -  - 

 -  - 
Service provider fees  -  940.57  - 

 -  - 
Rental expense  32.36  -  - 

 -  - 
Interest on security deposit  37.02  -  - 

 -  - 
Income from other services  -  -  - 

 -  - 
Salaries and allowances **
- Mr. Venkatesh Kannappan  -  -  22.96 

 -  - 
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Nature of transaction Holding company 
(HLF)

Fellow subsidiary 
(HSL) KMP

- Ms. Roopa Sampath Kumar  -  -  1.59 
 -  - 

- Mr. Baalasubramaniyan Ne.  -  -  0.49 
 -  - 

** The salaries and allowance are paid by Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited and the same is reimbursed 
by Hinduja Housing Finance Limited.

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

27 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

Hinduja Leyland Finance Limited

Payables  -  26.32  88.78 

 144.10  111.74  93.84 

Prepaid rent  17.90  50.26  68.16 

HLF Services Limited

Payables  -  117.69  21.62 

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis. None of the balances is 
secured.

28 Segment reporting  

 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which 
it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions 

All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s Managing Director 

108 Operating Segments.

 The CODM considers the entire business of the Company on a holistic basis to make operating 
decisions and thus there are no segregated operating segments. The Company is engaged into the 
business of providing housing loans and property loans. The CODM of the Company reviews the 
operating results of the Company as a whole and therefore not more than one reportable segment is 
required to be disclosed by the Company as envisaged by Ind AS 108 Operating Segments. Accordingly, 

property loans.

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019



84 Annual Report 2018 - 2019

 The Company does not have any separate geographic segment other than India. As such there are no 
separate reportable segments as per IND AS 108 operating segments.

29 Contingent liabilities and commitments

March 2018: Nil)

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars Year ended  
31 Mar 2019

Year ended  
31 Mar 2018

30 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) EXPENSES

the year as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with schedule VII

 17.66  - 

- -

- -

Within one year - -

- -

- -

Total - -

31 Outstanding lease obligations  

leases arrangement with its holding company which is renewable at the option of the Company. 
Total rental expense under cancellable leases amounted to INR 54.85 lakhs (31 March 2018 : INR 
34.73 lakhs), excluding fair valuation of security deposits.

34.88 lakhs)

Notes to Financial Statements 
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 Gratuity plan

 Financial assets not measured at fair value

gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has 

the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age/ resignation date.

risk, market risk, legislative risk etc. These are discussed as follows:

following reasons:  

 Adverse salary growth experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will 
result into an increase in obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption 

relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

 Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate 

 Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets 

inter-valuation period. 

 Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate 

valuation date.

 Legislative risk: Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets 
due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act, 

the year when any such amendment is effective.  

Notes to Financial Statements 
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 The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under IND AS 19. Reconciliation 

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2019

As at  
31 March 2018

Present value of obligations  20.29  3.93 

Fair value of plan assets  -  - 

Asset/ (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet  (20.29)  (3.93)

 Actuarial assumptions As at  
31 March 2019

As at  
31 March 2018

Discount rate 7.68% 7.08%

Estimated rate of return on plan assets 0.00% 0.00%

Attrition rate 29.00% 25.00%

Future salary increases 10.00% 10.00%

Retirement age 58 years 58 years

 3.93  5.98 

Current service cost  13.71  1.90 

Interest cost  0.31  0.35 

 2.34 

 -  - 

 20.29  3.93 

 Year ended  
31 March 2019

Year ended  
31 March 2018

Current service cost  13.71  1.90 

Interest on obligation  0.31  0.35 

Expected return on plan assets  -  - 

 2.34 

Total  16.36  (2.05)
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promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market. Assumptions 
regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables. The calculation of the 

Five year information 

Gratuity
As at  

31 March 
2019

As at  
31 March 

2018

As at  
31 March 

2017

As at  
31 March 

2016

As at  
31 March 

2015
 20.29  3.93  5.98  -  - 

Fair value of plan assets  -  -  -  -  - 
 20.29  3.93  5.98  -  - 

Experience adjustments on 
plan liabilities

 2.34  -  -  - 

Experience adjustments on 
plan assets

 -  -  -  -  - 

Sensitivity Analysis  

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding 

below:

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2019

Year ended  
31 March 2018

 20.29  3.93 

Particulars Year ended 
 31 March 2019

Year ended 
 31 March 2018

100 base points increase/decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
 18.26  22.64  3.67  4.22 

-9.99% 11.61% -6.74% 7.42%
 22.46  18.38  4.18  3.70 

10.68% -9.40% 6.43% -5.99%
 19.01  21.69  3.73  4.14 

-6.31% 6.93% -5.12% 5.37%

it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown

Notes to Financial Statements 
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4.96 lakhs).

33 Utilisation of the proceeds of rights issue

utilised as follows:

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars Year ended  
31 March 2019

Year ended  
31 March 2018

Proceeds from rights issue  3,000.00  3,000.00 

Utilisation during the year

Loans to customer

Unutilised amount at the end of the year  -  - 

34 MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES

 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which came into force from 2 
October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to Micro, Small and Medium 
enterprises. There have been no reported cases of delays in payments to micro and small enterprises 
or of interest payments due to delays in such payments.The disclosure as required by section 22 of 
MSMED Act has been given below:

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year.

- - -

of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with 
amount of the payment made to supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting year;

- - -

been paid but beyond the appointed day during 
the year) but without adding the interest 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

- - -

Notes to Financial Statements 
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INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

unpaid at the end of year; and
- - -

payable even in the succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the 
purpose of disallowance of a deductible 
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small 
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 
2006.

- - -

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019

< This space has been intentionally left blank >



90 Annual Report 2018 - 2019

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

IN
R

 in
 L

ak
hs

35
 

M
A

TU
R

IT
Y 

A
N

A
LY

SI
S 

O
F 

A
SS

ET
S 

A
N

D
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S

 
Th

e 
ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 s

ho
w

s 
an

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

al
ys

ed
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 b
e 

re
co

ve
re

d 
or

 s
et

tle
d.

 
W

ith
 re

ga
rd

 to
 lo

an
s 

an
d 

ad
va

nc
es

 to
 c

us
to

m
er

s,
 th

e 
co

m
pa

ny
 u

se
s 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

re
pa

ym
en

t b
eh

av
io

ur
 a

s 
us

ed
 fo

r 
es

tim
at

in
g 

th
e 

E
IR

.

Pa
rti

cu
la

rs
As

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

9
As

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8
As

 a
t 1

 A
pr

il 
20

17
W

ith
in

 1
2 

M
on

th
s

Af
te

r 1
2 

M
on

th
s

To
ta

l
W

ith
in

 1
2 

M
on

th
s

Af
te

r 1
2 

M
on

th
s

To
ta

l
W

ith
in

 1
2 

M
on

th
s

Af
te

r 1
2 

M
on

th
s

To
ta

l

AS
SE

TS
Fi

na
nc

ial
 a

ss
et

s
Ca

sh
 a

nd
 ca

sh
 e

qu
iva

len
ts

 1
,1

27
.3

1 
 - 

 1
,1

27
.3

1 
 9

83
.0

8 
 - 

 9
83

.0
8 

 2
02

.1
5 

 - 
 2

02
.1

5 
Lo

an
s

 8
,1

40
.2

2 
1,

13
,9

00
.2

0 
1,

22
,0

40
.4

2 
 3

,3
05

.7
1 

 6
6,

49
5.

70
 

 6
9,

80
1.

41
 

 1
,7

97
.2

1 
 4

2,
76

0.
44

 
 4

4,
55

7.
65

 
In

ve
stm

en
ts

 5
02

.0
2 

 4
,7

90
.8

4 
 5

,2
92

.8
6 

 6
9.

49
 

 3
,7

84
.6

7 
 3

,8
54

.1
6 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 1

,2
40

.2
7 

 - 
 1

,2
40

.2
7 

 1
,0

96
.3

8 
 - 

 1
,0

96
.3

8 
 6

47
.3

1 
 - 

 6
47

.3
1 

 2
47

.6
1 

 - 
 2

47
.6

1 
 1

71
.4

6 
 - 

 1
71

.4
6 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 9

2.
81

 
 9

2.
81

 
 - 

 6
4.

48
 

 6
4.

48
 

Pr
op

er
ty,

 p
lan

t a
nd

 e
qu

ipm
en

t
 - 

 2
05

.6
5 

 2
05

.6
5 

 - 
 1

00
.6

1 
 1

00
.6

1 
 - 

 8
8.

69
 

 8
8.

69
 

In
ta

ng
ibl

e 
as

se
ts

 - 
 3

.9
5 

 3
.9

5 
 - 

 5
.3

0 
 5

.3
0 

 - 
 6

.8
2 

 6
.8

2 
 2

0.
21

 
 - 

 2
0.

21
 

 3
5.

43
 

 1
7.

90
 

 5
3.

33
 

 4
4.

86
 

 5
0.

26
 

 9
5.

12
 

TO
TA

L 
AS

SE
TS

 1
1,

27
7.

64
 

1,
18

,9
00

.6
4 

1,
30

,1
78

.2
8 

 5
,6

61
.5

5 
 7

0,
49

6.
99

 
 7

6,
15

8.
54

 
 2

,6
91

.5
3 

 4
2,

97
0.

69
 

 4
5,

66
2.

22
 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019



Annual Report 2018 - 2019 91

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

IN
R

 in
 L

ak
hs

Pa
rti

cu
la

rs
As

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

9
As

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

8
As

 a
t 1

 A
pr

il 
20

17
W

ith
in

 1
2 

M
on

th
s

Af
te

r 1
2 

M
on

th
s

To
ta

l
W

ith
in

 1
2 

M
on

th
s

Af
te

r 1
2 

M
on

th
s

To
ta

l
W

ith
in

 1
2 

M
on

th
s

Af
te

r 1
2 

M
on

th
s

To
ta

l

LI
AB

IL
IT

IE
S

Fi
na

nc
ial

 L
iab

ilit
ies

Tr
ad

ep
ay

ab
les

 

m
icr

o 
an

d 
sm

all
 e

nt
er

pr
ise

s
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

cr
ed

ito
rs

 o
th

er
 th

an
 m

icr
o 

an
d 

sm
all

 e
nt

er
pr

ise
s

 4
2.

66
 

 - 
 4

2.
66

 
 3

1.
61

 
 - 

 3
1.

61
 

 2
0.

30
 

 - 
 2

0.
30

 

Bo
rro

wi
ng

s*
 1

9,
89

2.
48

 
 9

0,
08

8.
86

 
1,

09
,9

81
.3

4 
 3

,8
99

.6
0 

 5
8,

07
7.

89
 

 6
1,

97
7.

49
 

 2
,5

63
.9

4 
 3

3,
59

1.
87

 
 3

6,
15

5.
81

 
 8

07
.7

2 
 - 

 8
07

.7
2 

 3
52

.0
8 

 - 
 3

52
.0

8 
 2

10
.6

9 
 - 

 2
10

.6
9 

Pr
ov

isi
on

s
 0

.0
5 

 3
6.

60
 

 3
6.

65
 

 2
0.

99
 

 8
.8

8 
 2

9.
87

 
 6

5.
56

 
 5

.9
8 

 7
1.

54
 

 - 
 6

0.
93

 
 6

0.
93

 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 - 

 - 
 1

9.
47

 
 - 

 1
9.

47
 

 3
6.

84
 

 - 
 3

6.
84

 
 4

0.
19

 
 - 

 4
0.

19
 

TO
TA

L 
LI

AB
IL

IT
IE

S
 2

0,
76

2.
38

 
 9

0,
18

6.
39

 
1,

10
,9

48
.7

7 
 4

,3
41

.1
2 

 5
8,

08
6.

77
 

 6
2,

42
7.

89
 

 2
,9

00
.6

8 
 3

3,
59

7.
85

 
 3

6,
49

8.
53

 
NE

T
 -9

,4
84

.7
4 

 2
8,

71
4.

25
 

 1
9,

22
9.

51
 

 1
,3

20
.4

3 
 1

2,
41

0.
22

 
 1

3,
73

0.
65

 
 -2

09
.1

5 
 9

,3
72

.8
4 

 9
,1

63
.6

9 

* 
C

as
h 

cr
ed

it 
bo

rr
ow

in
gs

 a
nd

 w
or

ki
ng

 c
ap

ita
l d

em
an

d 
lo

an
 fr

om
 b

an
ks

 a
re

 u
su

al
ly

 fo
r a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 1

 y
ea

r. 
A

s 
pe

r t
he

 p
re

va
le

nt
 p

ra
ct

ic
e,

 
th

es
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ar

e 
re

ne
w

ed
 o

n 
a 

ye
ar

 to
 y

ea
r b

as
is

 a
nd

 th
er

ef
or

e,
 a

re
 re

vo
lv

in
g 

in
 n

at
ur

e.
 A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, r

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 o

f c
as

h 
cr

ed
it 

**
 

Th
e 

cu
rr

en
t p

or
tio

n 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 lo
an

s 
in

 th
is

 n
ot

e 
is

 s
ho

w
n 

ba
se

d 
on

 c
on

tra
ct

ua
l o

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 a

s 
pe

r t
he

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t. 

H
ow

ev
er

, h
ou

si
ng

 
lo

an
 a

dv
an

ce
s 

hi
st

or
ic

al
ly

 w
itn

es
s 

a 
hi

gh
 r

at
e 

of
 p

re
pa

ym
en

ts
. 

If 
th

e 
m

at
ur

ity
 p

at
te

rn
 o

f 
th

es
e 

ad
va

nc
es

 a
re

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

in
 t

he
 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
tim

e 
bu

ck
et

s 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 ra

te
s 

of
 p

re
pa

ym
en

ts
 o

n 
ho

us
in

g 
lo

an
, i

t w
ill

 n
ot

 re
su

lt 
in

 a
n 

as
se

t l
ia

bi
lit

y 
m

is
m

at
ch

.

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019



92 Annual Report 2018 - 2019

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

a. Financial instruments by category

were as follows:

Particulars
Carrying 
amount Fair value

Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets not measured at fair value*
Cash and cash 
equivalents

 1,127.31 

Loans  1,22,040.42  -  -  1,21,260.17  1,21,260.17 
Investments  5,292.86  -  -  3,894.73  3,894.73 

 1,240.27 
Total  1,29,700.86 
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value*
Trade payables  42.66 
Borrowings  1,09,981.34  -  -  1,09,981.34  1,09,981.34 

 807.72 
Total  1,10,831.72 

follows:

Particulars
Carrying 
amount Fair value

Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets not measured at fair value*
Cash and cash 
equivalents

 983.08 

Loans  69,801.41  -  -  69,110.72  69,110.72 
Investments  3,854.16  -  -  2,731.40  2,731.40 

 1,096.38 
Total  75,735.03 
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value*
Trade payables  31.61 
Borrowings  61,977.49  -  -  61,977.49  61,977.49 

 352.08 
Total  62,361.18 
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follows:

Particulars
Carrying 
amount Fair value

Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets not measured at fair value*
Cash and cash 
equivalents

 202.15 

Loans  44,557.65  -  -  44,557.65  44,557.65 
Investments  -  -  -  -  - 

 647.31 
Total  45,407.11 
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value*
Trade payables  20.30 
Borrowings  36,155.81  -  -  36,155.81  36,155.81 

 210.69 
Total  36,386.80 

Sensitivity analysis
Other comprehensive income,  

net of tax
Level 3 Total

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Loans

 576.15 
For the year ended 31 March 2019
Loans

 965.01 

because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

b. Measurement of fair values

values were calculated for disclosure purposes only.

the carrying amounts, which are net of impairment, are a reasonable approximation of their fair value. 
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 Loans and advances to customers   

Consequently the carrying amount represents the fair value.

incorporates assumptions for credit risk, probability of default and loss give default estimates.

 Investments 

risk, probability of default and loss give default estimates.

 Borrowings 

carrying amount represents the fair value.

 Transfers between levels I and II

 There has been no transfer in between level I and level II.

c. Capital  

 The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and 
is meeting the capital adequacy requirements of the local regulatory body, National Housing Bank 

regulations issued by NHB.  

 The Company has complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported 
period. Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company’s capital 
management.

 Capital management  

 The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company 
complies with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholder value.

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according to changes in 
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to 
shareholders or issue capital securities. No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and 
processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board.
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

directly from its operations.

 The Company is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company’s board of directors 
has an overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management 
framework. The board of directors has established the risk management committee, which is responsible 
for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee reports 
regularly to the board of directors on its activities.

 The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the 
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. risk 

the Company’s activities.

 The Company’s risk management committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the 
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk 
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

(i) Credit risk  

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises primarily from the Company's loans and 
investments.  

A. Loans and advances

customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry.

 The risk management committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is 
analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms 
and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings, if they are available, 

 The Company’s gross exposure to credit risk for loans and investments by type of counterparty is as 
follows:
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INR In Lakhs
Carrying Amount

 Particulars As at  
31 Mar 2019

As at  
31 Mar 2018

As at  
1 Apr 2017

Retail loans  1,04,159.90  66,004.37  44,773.57 

Term loans  18,385.30  4,451.78  - 

Investments  5,293.12  3,854.27  - 

 1,27,838.32  74,310.42  44,773.57 

The above exposure is entirely concentrated in India. There are no overseas exposure.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing 
on that date to identify expected losses on account of time value of money and credit risk. For the purposes 
of this analysis, the loan receivables are categorised into groups based on days past due. Each group is then 

Staging:

with the initial recognition, then an instrument is transferred to stage 2. If there is objective evidence of 
impairment, then the asset is credit impaired and transferred to stage 3.

calculations in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

for the lifespan of the instrument.

date from the initial recognisation. Company has staged the assets based on the day past dues criteria and 

Days past dues status Stage Provisions
Current Stage 1 12 Months Provision

1-30 Days Stage 1 12 Months Provision
31-60 Days Stage 2 Lifetime Provision
61-90 Days Stage 2 Lifetime Provision
90+ Days Stage 3 Lifetime Provision
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Grouping

As per Ind AS 109, Company is required to group the portfolio based on the shared risk charecterstics. 
Company has assessed the risk and its impact on the various portfolios and has divided the portfolio into 
following groups:

 - Housing Loans

 - Loan against property

- Investments

Expected credit loss ("ECL"):

considering risk of credit loss even if probblity is low. ECL is calaculated based on the following components:

Marginal probablity of default:

12 months. Historical PD is dervied from the HFC's internal data calibrated with forward looking 
macroeconomic factors.

term structure over lifetime of loans. As per Vasicek model, given long term PD and current macroeconomic 
conditions, conditional PD corresponding to current macroeconomic condition is estimated. Company has 

Marginal probability:

The PDs derived from the Vasicek Single Factor Model, are the cumulative PDs, stating that the borrower 
can default in any of the given years, however to compute the loss for any given year, these cumulative PDs 
have to be converted to marginal PDs. Marginal PDs is probability that the obligor will default in a given year, 
conditional on it having survived till the end of the previous year.

Conditional marginal probability:

As per Ind AS 109, expected loss has to be calculated as an unbiased and probability-weighted amount for 
multiple scenarios

This weightage has been decided on best practices and expert judgement. Marginal conditional probability 
was calculated for all 3 possible scenarios and one conditional PD was arrived as conditional weighted 
probability.
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Loss given default ("LGD"):

LGD is an estimate of the loss from a transaction given that a default occurs. Under Ind AS 109, lifetime 

Various approaches are available to compute the LGD. Company has considered workout LGD appraoch. 
The following steps are performed to calculate the LGD:

2) The outstanding amount was adjusted with the haircut adjusted collateral value.

Exposure at default ("EAD"):

in the event of default and at the time of counterparty's default. Company has modelled EAD based on the 

which was used for computation of ECL. Moreover, the EAD comprised of principal component, accrued 
interest and also the interest on the outstanding exposure for the ensuing 12 months. So discounting was 
done for computation of expected credit loss.

Discounting:

As per Ind AS 109, ECL is computed by estimating the timing of the expected credit shortfalls associated 
with the defaults and discounting them using effective interest rate.

ECL computation:

Conditional ECL at DPD pool level was computed with the following method:

The calculation is based on provision matrix which considers actual historical data adjusted appropriately for 
the future expectations and probabilities. Proportion of expected credit loss provided for across the stage is 
summarised below:

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2019

As at  
31 March 2018

As at  
1 April 2017

Stage 1  30.76  35.71  25.22 

Stage 2  179.73  373.37  190.70 

Stage 3  294.55  245.77  - 

Amount of expected credit loss provided 
for  505.04  654.85  215.92 
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The loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over past years. These loss rates are then adjusted 

view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the loan receivables. Movement in provision of 
expected credit loss has been provided in below note.

Movement of ECL:

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2019

As at  
31 March 2018

Opening provision of ECL  654.85  215.92 

Addition during the year  431.01  564.05 

Utilization / reversal during the year

Closing provision of ECL  505.04  654.85 

 Collateral and other credit enhancements  

 The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the 
counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.
The main types of collateral obtained are mortgaged properties based on the nature of loans. 
Management monitors the market value of collateral and will request additional collateral in accordance 
with the underlying agreement. The Company advances loan to maximum extent of 80% of the value 
of the mortgaged properties.

(ii) Liquidity risk

of the year and planned accordingly the funding requirement. The Company manages its liquidity by 
unutilised cash credit facility, term loans and direct assignment.

 The composition of the Company's liability mix ensures healthy asset liability maturity pattern and well 
diverse resource mix.

 The total cash credit and working capital limit available to the Company is INR 15,500 lakhs spread 

hand.

 Majority of the Company's portfolio is individual housing loans. The company does not have any off 
book assets under management.

based on contractual undiscounted payments along with its carrying value as at the balance sheet date.
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Particulars
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017

Borrowings Trade 
payable Borrowings Trade 

payable Borrowings Trade 
payable

1 day to 30/31 days  1,894.57  42.66  768.67  31.61  -  20.30 

Over one month to 2 months  969.40  -  54.28  -  10.00  - 
Over 2 months up to 3 months  1,841.01  -  128.31  -  416.75  - 
Over 3 months to 6 months  4,575.18  -  281.05  -  517.40  - 
Over 6 months to 1 year  10,612.33  -  2,667.29  -  1,619.79  - 
Over 1 year to 3 years  41,936.64  -  21,193.84  -  8,478.88  - 
Over 3 year to 5 years  30,528.26  -  18,791.28  -  9,075.47  - 
Over 5 years  17,686.94  -  18,185.93  -  16,139.92  - 
Total  1,10,044.33  42.66  62,070.65  31.61  36,258.21  20.30 

Particulars

Year ended  
31 March 2019

Year ended  
31 March 2018

Borrowings Trade 
payable Borrowings Trade 

payable
Change in interest rates
Variable rate borrowings

 859.79  490.67 

(iii) Market risk

because of changes in market prices. Market risk includes interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. 
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

 Interest rate risk

because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market 
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s investment in bank deposits and variable interest rate 
borrowings and lending. Whenever there is a change in borrowing interest rate for the Company, 

of change in interest rates of borrowings.

 The sensitivity analysis have been carried out based on the exposure to interest rates lending and 
borrowings carried at variable rate.

(iv) Foreign currency risk

 The Company does not have any instrument denominated or traded in foreign currency. Hence, such 
risk does not affect the Company.
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IND AS

the year ended 31 March 2019 including the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2018 
and the opening consolidated Ind AS balance sheet on the date of transition i.e. 1 April 2017.

 In preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at 1 April 2017 and in presenting the comparative information 

statements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments 

 Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

exemptions and mandatory exceptions.

38.1 Optional exemptions availed

(i) Property plant and equipment and intangible assets 

 As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:

that fair value as its deemed cost at that date

of transition as deemed cost at the date of the revaluation, provided the revaluation was, at the 
date of the revaluation, broadly comparable to:

adjustments relating to decommissioning liabilities prescribed under Ind AS 101) if there has been 
no change in its functional currency on the date of transition.

 As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying values under 
previous GAAP for all the items of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. The same 
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election has been made in respect of intangible assets. The carrying values of property, plant and 
equipment as aforesaid are after making adjustments relating to decommissioning liabilities, if any.

38.2 Mandatory exceptions

(i) Accounting Estimates

 As per Ind AS 101, an entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS at 

may be, should be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with the previous 
GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates 

 As per Ind AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were 

 The Company’s estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the above requirement. Key estimates 

are listed below:

 - EIR on borrowings

circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of 

transition if retrospective application is impracticable.

amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

previous GAAP.

recognised as per Ind-AS 109 retrospectively except:

 1. The Company has sought to approximate the credit risk on initial recognition by considering all 
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort.
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asset is derecognised.

 Accordingly, the Company has developed ECL model for testing of impairment of loans and advances.

38.3 Reconciliation of equity

As at date of transition  
1 April 2017 As at 31 March 2018

Previous 
GAAP*

Adjustment 
on 

transition 
to 

Ind AS

Ind AS Previous 
GAAP*

Adjustment on 
transition to 

Ind AS
Ind AS

ASSETS 
Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents  202.15  -  202.15  983.08  -  983.08 
Loans  44,603.95  44,557.65 69,935.30  69,801.41 
Investments  -  -  -  3,854.27  3,854.16 

 713.17  647.31  1,149.45  1,096.38 
 45,519.27  45,407.11 75,922.10  75,735.03 

 -  -  -  171.46  -  171.46 
 53.92  10.56  64.48  55.87  36.94  92.81 

Other non Financial assets  26.96  68.16  95.12  1.53  51.80  53.33 
Property, plant and 
equipment 

 88.69  -  88.69  100.61  -  100.61 

Intangible assets  6.82  -  6.82  5.30  -  5.30 
 176.39  78.72  255.11  334.77  88.74  423.51 

 Total assets  45,695.66  (33.44)  45,662.22 76,256.87  (98.33)  76,158.54 
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38.3 Reconciliation of equity

As at date of transition  
1 April 2017 As at 31 March 2018

Previous 
GAAP*

Adjustment 
on 

transition 
to 

Ind AS

Ind AS Previous 
GAAP*

Adjustment on 
transition to 

Ind AS
Ind AS

 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
 LIABILITIES 
 Financial liabilities 
 Trade payables  20.30  -  20.30  31.61  -  31.61 

secuities) 
 36,163.59  36,155.81 61,985.90  61,977.49 

 210.69  -  210.69  352.08  -  352.08 
 36,394.58  (7.78)  36,386.80 62,369.59  (8.41)  62,361.18 

 Provisions  71.54  -  71.54  29.87  -  29.87 
 40.19  -  40.19  36.84  -  36.84 

 111.73  -  111.73  66.71  -  66.71 
 EQUITY 
 Equity share capital  9,000.00  -  9,000.00 12,000.00  -  12,000.00 
 Other equity  189.35  163.69  1,820.57  1,730.65 

 9,189.35  (25.66)  9,163.69 13,820.57  (89.92)  13,730.65 
 Total liabilities and equity  45,695.66  (33.44)  45,662.22 76,256.87  (98.33)  76,158.54 

the purpose of this note.
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Note 1 April 2017 31 March 2018
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous 
GAAP

 9,189.35  13,820.57 

Rate method
Impact on application of Expected Credit Loss method 

Impact of fair valuation of security deposits given 
toward lease of property

 2.34 

Tax effects on above adjustments  10.56  36.94 
Total adjustments  (25.66)  (89.92)
Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per Ind AS  9,163.69  13,730.65 

38.4 Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018

Year ended 31 March 2018

Note Previous 
GAAP*

Adjustment 
on 

transition to 
Ind AS"

Ind AS

Revenue from operations and other income  8,664.22  874.28  9,538.50 
Total income  8,664.22  874.28  9,538.50 
Expenses
Finance costs  4,337.71  4,337.08 

write-offs
 402.60  71.01  473.61 

 893.04  4.30  897.34 
Depreciation and amortisation expenses  37.60  -  37.60 
Other expenses  656.60  17.98  674.58 
Total expenses  6,327.55  92.66  6,420.21 

 2,336.67  781.62  3,118.29 
Current tax  707.40  -  707.40 
Deferred tax
Income tax expense  705.45  (27.63)  677.82 

 1,631.22  809.25  2,440.47 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Year ended 31 March 2018

Note Previous 
GAAP*

Adjustment 
on 

transition to 
Ind AS"

Ind AS

Other comprehensive income
 -  4.30  4.30 

liabilities
 - 

Income tax impact on above
Total comprehensive income  1,631.22  812.31  2,443.53 

Particulars

Year 
ended 

31 March 
2018

 1,631.22 
Adjustments resulting in increase / 

under previous GAAP:

Effective Interest Rate method
Impact on application of Expected Credit Loss method for impairment allowance on 

Impact of fair valuation of security deposits given toward lease of property

Tax impact on above adjustments  27.62 
 1,563.90 

Other comprehensive income
 3.06 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year under Ind AS  1,566.96 

for the purpose of this note.

Notes to Financial Statements 
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(i) Fair valuation of security deposits given toward lease of property

 Under the previous GAAP, security deposits given towards lease of property were presented at its 
transaction value. However, as per Ind AS 109, security deposits given are measured at its fair value at 
the time of its initial recognition The difference between the initial fair value and transaction value of 
such deposits are considered as additional lease payment made, and is amortised over the term of 
such deposit, These deposits are fair valued at the end of each period based upon applicable interest 

(ii) Actuarial gain and loss

 Under Ind AS, all actuarial gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Under 

However, this has no major impact on the total comprehensive income and total equity as on 1 April 
2017 or as on 31 March 2018.

constituted by loans and investments have been provided for on the transition date with corresponding 
adjustment recognised in retained earnings.

(iv) EIR

 Under previous GAAP, loan sourcing cost and sourcing income were recognised on amortization basis 
on straight line method, while under Ind AS, such costs are included in the initial recognition amount of 

(v) Term Loan Processing fee

cost using effective interest rate method. Hence processing fee paid on loan have been amortised 
using effective interest method as against amortised for the tenor of loan under previous GAAP

(vi) Deferred tax

account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences 
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application 
of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences arising 
on account of transitional differences adjustments which were not required under previous GAAP. In 
addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting 
policies, the Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in 

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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(vii) Other comprehensive income

reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

39 Transfer pricing

maintains documents required by the relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 to prove that 
these transactions are at arm's length and believes that the aforesaid legislation will not have any 

taxation.

40 Subsequent events

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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 Statutory reserve

Balance at the beginning
a)   Statutory reserve as per section 29C of the National Housing 

Bank Act, 1987
 364.11  37.87 

1961 taken in to account for the purpose of statutory reserve 
u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

 -  - 

c) Total  364.11  37.87 

Addition/Appropriation/withdrawals during the year

Add:
a)  Amount transferred as per section 29C of the National 

Housing Bank Act, 1987
 408.42  326.24 

1961 taken in to account for the purpose of statutory reserve 
u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

 -  - 

Less:

a)   Amount appropriated as per section 29C of the National 
Housing Bank Act, 1987

 -  - 

Income tax Act, 1961 taken in to account for the purpose of 
statutory reserve u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 
1987

 -  - 

 (ii) Reserve fund u/s 29C of NHB Act, 1987

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

CRAR % 19.87% 30.21%

CRAR - Tier I Capital % 19.41% 29.54%

CRAR - Tier II Capital % 0.46% 0.67%

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier II Capital  -  - 

Amount raised by issue of perpetual debt instruments  -  - 

Unutilised amount at the end of the year  -  - 

dated February 9, 2017 issued by NHB.

 (i) Capital
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1 Value of investment

5,292.86 3,854.16

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

5,292.86 3,854.16

Nil Nil

2
Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on 
investments

year
Nil Nil

 (iii) Investments

 (iv) Derivatives

  There have been no forward rate contracts / interest rate swaps or any other derivative transactions 
carried out by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

 (v) Disclosures relating to securitisation

  There have been no securitisation transactions carried out by the Company during the year ended 
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Balance as at end of the year

a)   Statutory reserve as per section 29C of the National Housing 
Bank Act, 1987

 772.53  364.11 

1961 taken in to account for the purpose of statutory reserve 
u/s 29C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987

 -  - 

c)  Total  772.53  364.11 
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INR In Lakhs

 Category  As at 
31 March 2019

 As at 
31 March 2018

(a)  Direct exposure

(i) Residential Mortgage
Lending fully secured by mortgage on residential property that is 
or will be occupied by borrower or that is rented

 Housing loan upto Rs. 15 lakhs  25,972.02  18,588.68 

 Housing loan more than Rs. 15 lakhs  45,341.17  42,036.43 

(ii) Commercial real estate

Lending fully secured by mortgage on commercial real estate 

premises, multi-family residential building, multi-tenanted 
commercial building, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land 
acquisitions, developments and constructions, etc.). Exposure 

 29,442.91  5,058.46 

(iii)  Investment in mortgage back securities (MBS) and 
Other securitized exposures

 4,311.89  2,854.27 

(b) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non fund based exposure on National Housing 
 22,627.65  4,464.29 

dated February 9, 2017 issued by NHB.

 A. Exposure to Real Estate Sector

 B. Exposure to capital market

  There is no exposure to capital market during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018

   
2019 and 31 March 2018

 D. Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL)/ Group Borrower Limit (GBL)

   During the year, the company had exceeded the single borrower limit as stipulated by the NHB 
Prudential Norms in respect of Corporate term loans given to three entities. This was reported to 

Notes to Financial Statements 
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amount as on 31st March 2019.

 E. Unsecured loans

  There is no exposure to capital market during the year ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

dated February 9, 2017 issued by NHB.

Registration/ License Authority issuing the 
registration/ license

Registration/ License 
reference

National Housing Bank 09.0129.15

 (ii) Disclosure of Penalties imposed by NHB and other regulators

 Items  As at 
31 March 2019

 As at 
31 March 2018

a) Penalty

 Penalty if any levied by National Housing Bank  15,000.00  - 

b) Adverse remarks

 Adverse remarks if any given by National Housing Bank  -  - 

c)  Percentage of outstanding loans granted against 
collateral gold jewellery to their outstanding assets  -  - 

 (iii) Ratings assigned by credit rating agency and migration of ratings during the year

Facility Rating agency  31 March 2019 Date of rating
Long-term : Bank borrowings CARE AA-/Stable 24-Jul-18
Short-term : Bank borrowings CARE A1+ 24-Jul-18
Short-term : Commercial paper CARE A1+ 24-Jul-18
Long-term: Non-convertible debentures CRISIL AA-/Stable 19-Apr-18
Short-term : Commercial paper CRISIL A1+ 19-Apr-18
Short-term : Commercial paper CRISIL A1+ 20-Jun-18

Notes to Financial Statements 
For the year ended at 31st March 2019
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by NHB

 (i) Provisions and Contingencies

 (ii) break up of loans and advances and provisions thereon

INR In Lakhs

 Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Provisions for depreciation on investment  -  - 

Provisions made towards income tax  -  20.98 

Provisions towards non-performing assets  452.32  260.52 

Provision for Standard Assets  401.18  287.12 

Other provision and contingencies  80.17  8.89 

Particulars

Housing loan Non-housing loan
 As at 

31 March 
2019 

 As at  
31 March 

2018 

 As at  
31 March 

2019 

 As at  
31 March 

2018 
Standard assets
Total outstanding  71,313.19  60,656.59  54,897.39  9,575.44 
Provisions
Sub-standard assets
Total outstanding  1,614.86  286.24  -  - 
Provisions  -  - 
Doubtful assets
Total outstanding  100.54  80.00  -  - 
Provisions  -  - 
Loss assets
Total outstanding  150.36  197.02  -  - 
Provisions  -  - 
Total
Total outstanding  73,178.95  61,219.85  54,897.39  9,575.44 
Provisions

 Note:  The total outstanding amount mean principal + accrued interest + other charges pertaining to 
loans without netting off.

Notes to Financial Statements 
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 (iii) Concentration of public depoists, Advances*, exposure# and NPAs

S.No Particulars  31 March 2019  31 March 2018 
1

Deposit taking/holding HFCs)
NA NA

2 Concentration of loans & advances
Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 2,011.88 5,430.88
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest 
borrowers to Total Advances of the HFC

1.57% 7.74%

3
off-balance sheet exposures)
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / 
customers 

2,011.88 6,167.84

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest 
borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of 
the HFC on borrowers / customers

1.50% 8.79%

4 Concentration of NPAs
Total exposure to top ten NPA accounts 522.51 354.03

 * Advances represents the outstanding balances as at the respective year end

 #

 (iv) Sector wise NPA 

Particulars

% of NPAs to 
total advances in 

that sector 

% of NPAs to 
total advances in 

that sector 
 31 March 2019  31 March 2018 

A.Housing Loans:
Individuals 2.62% 0.93%
Builders/Project Loans 0.00% 0.00%
Corporates 0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%
A. Non-Housing Loans:
Individuals 0.00% 0.00%
Builders/Project Loans 0.00% 0.00%
Corporates 0.00% 0.00%

0.00% 0.00%

Notes to Financial Statements 
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 (v) Movement of NPAs       

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2018

1.16% 0.43%

Opening balance  563.26  - 
Additions during the year  2,146.27  563.26 
Reductions during the year  - 
Closing balance  2,282.53  563.26 

Opening balance  302.74  - 
Additions during the year  1,358.69  302.74 
Reductions during the year  - 
Closing balance  1,429.03  302.74 

provisions on standard assets)
Opening balance  260.52  - 
Provisions made during the year  787.58  260.52 
Write-off / write-back of excess provisions  - 
Closing balance  853.50  260.52 

 (vi) Overseas assets 

  The Company does not have any joint ventures and subsidiaries abroad during the year ended 31 
March 2019 and 31 March 2018 and hence this disclosure is not applicable.

 (vii) Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored

  There were no off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company during the year ended 31 
March 2019 and 31 March 2018.
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Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2019

Year ended 
31 March 2018

year
 -  - 

 134  38.00 
 134  38.00 

 -  - 

 * As per the records of the Company

Notes to Financial Statements 
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Network of Business Locations



Annual Report 2018 - 2019 119

NOTES



120 Annual Report 2018 - 2019

NOTES




